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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (“the
Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as “the Group” or “we”) for the year 2007 to the
Group’s (“our”) shareholders.

In 2007, exports of various products to countries around
the world slowed on the back of the depreciation of the US
dollar, rising energy prices and the sub-prime crisis in the
US. This affected market demand for corrugated cardboard
products. Although changes to China’s labour policy and
the appreciation of the Renminbi had put pressure on
corporates, Chinese domestic economic growth remains
buoyant and this drove up considerably domestic demand
for corrugated cardboard products. The Group was able
to exploit this opportunity to expand its domestic market,
improve our marketing strategies and deliver satisfactory
growth in our revenues for the year.

Our upstream corrugating medium production facilities
can now satisfy approximately 40% of our raw materials
requirements for manufacturing corrugated paper boards
and carton boxes. Our stable supply of quality raw materials
have mitigated risks associated with supply stability and
price fluctuations. We also focused on the construction of
our upstream linerboard production line and our new power
plant. This was the Group’s biggest project ever and, after
16 months of challenging work, the project’s infrastructure
and installation works have been completed, and trial
production had already started. We are delighted with the
results of the trial production and the quality of the products
from the new line already meet international standards. We
expect the new line to start full commercial production from
June 2008 onwards.

By that time, our upstream business can fully meet the
raw materials requirements of our downstream business,
and provide enough linerboard and corrugating medium to
our downstream plants to make paper boards and carton
boxes. Not only can this give us assurance on the quality
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of our products but we can also reduce operating costs,
meet customers’ requirements for just-in-time delivery and
guarantee the quality of our service.

Looking back on the last three years of development, with
our resolute and tenacious approach, we strived to reduce
operating risks, grasp various development opportunities,
solidify our operations, and pushed ahead with various plant
expansion and capacity development plans. We were able
to implement a vertically integrated business model, reduce
operating costs, and delivered steady and significant growth
in our revenues and profits, and we are excited by our
achievements.

2008 marks a new chapter in our Group’s history. A fully
self-sufficient, vertically integrated business model brings
to our Group healthy development going forward. We
will concentrate on the development of our downstream
business, expand our market share and aim to expand our
market share in Guangdong Province from 5% at present to
10% within five years.

In January 2008, we implemented the first step towards
plans to expand our downstream operations in Dongguan
by adding a new corrugator. As downstream small and
medium sized manufacturers are facing a new round of
consolidation due to rising production costs and changes
to Chinese government policy, we see opportunities for
us to expand our operations. We are closely investigating
the possibility of acquiring downstream manufacturers and
are seeking appropriate acquisition targets, to achieve
economies of scale, improve our competitive position
and create more synergies with our upstream operations.
We expect to start construction of our third upstream
production line in mid-2009, and to start production by the
end of 2010, in order to expand our production capacity to
no less than 600,000 tonnes per year.

Although prospects for the global economy remain
uncertain, and costs are still rising relentlessly, the rising
wealth and spending power of the Chinese people still
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provide ample opportunities for expansion. We will continue
with our tenacious approach, grasp this opportunity to
expand our business, and face a challenging future. We will
continue to strengthen our management and improve our
competitiveness to achieve better returns.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
management and staff across all levels, and express my
gratitude to our employees’ industrious service over the last
year, as well as the support from our customers, suppliers,
the banking community and investors. We would continue
to strive to provide long-term satisfactory returns to the
Group and our shareholders.

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
22nd April, 2008

ELEEERERAA /| —CEZLEFER

A
]

REBDARK HMASEERZRGER
MEE MEBHEREBERER LUER
KRB R R WA R(EEIRMANGR B &
MBFE FREEMNDOR-

mE AABRBUEREREEEREMET
B BRHBA-FROFH T LEH
BEE -HER - RITARKREE —WNAERDH
XF-BRMEEBER N ARAEBERBRR®E R
RENEENH@IE -

FE
HHRE
—EENFHUA=-+=H



Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2007

Management Discussion And Analysis

BIRE R W A AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group " s revenue achieved steady growth in the year,
with increases in both domestic and overseas sales. Domestic
sales doubled in the last year, on the back of rising domestic
consumption pushing up demand for containerboard
packaging products. In the year, our sales of paper boards and
carton boxes were roughly split 70:30; the shorter timeframe
required to make paper boards versus carton boxes allowed us
to improve utilization by five percentage points.

In the upstream business, to maintain our flexibility and agility,
the Group concentrated on the production of high performance
corrugating medium, and sold some of our products to other
customers. At the same time we sourced regular corrugating
medium from external parties. This allowed us to raise the
utilization of our upstream facilities to 100%, and effectively
control operating costs, and offset the impact from rising raw
materials prices and the appreciation of the Renminbi, resulting
in the growth in profits for the group in the period.

Within the year, the Group dedicated itself towards building the
infrastructure required for installation of the linerboard line and
related equipment, including the power plant, waste treatment
plant and related environmental protection equipment and
facilities. This production line " s capacity can reach 230,000
tonnes, and should start production in June 2008. The new
plant can resolve the impact of fluctuations in raw materials
prices and supply on our operations, and further enhance our
profitability.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BIRE & A AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating results

Turnover of the Group recorded an increase from HK$799.9
million to HK$925.5 million, representing a surge of 15.7%.
[t was mainly attributable to the rise in selling prices and
robust domestic demand of corrugated packaging paper-
ware products from the booming Chinese economy. With
the full year’s upstream production of corrugating medium
which satisfied approximately 40% of the needs of the
downstream paper-ware business, it resulted in great cost
saving which offset against significant paper cost increment.
Therefore, the Group’s gross profit was surged by 16.1%,
with gross profit margin maintained at 22.9%.

Other income increased by 4.4% to HK$18.5 million (2006:
HK$17.7 million)

Distribution costs increased by 13.5% to HK$45.4 million
(2006: HK$39.9 million). It was due to higher transportation
costs for delivering more corrugating medium from Qingyuan
City to the downstream plants in Dongguan City and
Shenzhen City.

During the vyear, administrative expenses increased by
37.3% to HK$58.5 million (2006: HK$42.6 million). The
tense supply of domestic labour led to higher salaries
level and other related staff costs in order to reduce staff
turnover rate. Extra staff was employed to cope with the
continuous business growth. Furthermore, share based
payment of approximately HK$5.2 million was incurred for
granting share options to eligible staff as incentive.

With full year’s depreciation charge for fixed assets (other
than plant and machinery) of the upstream plant when
compared to only nine-month charges in 2006, other
operating expenses increased by 11.8% to HK$24.7 million
(2006: HK$22.1 million).
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B IR E R S o T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating results (Continued)

With the success in producing corrugating medium for own
use and expanding the domestic market share, the Group
measured an increase of earnings before interest and tax
(“EBIT") by 6.6% to HK$101.6 milion (2006: HK$95.3
million) that brought to EBIT margin to 11%.

New bank loans were raised to finance the construction of
plant and power plant, and acquisition of machinery for the
Group’s upstream kraft linerboard production (“upstream
investment project”). However decrease in finance costs by
HK$1.8 million was due to capitalization of bank interests
directly attributable to the upstream investment project.

Same as last year, changes in fair values of derivative
financial instruments and structured borrowing were
recognized in the income statement for accounting purpose
only. They were non-cash in nature and will be reversed to
zero at maturity date.

During 2007, the Group had entered into certain new
forward exchange contracts to minimize the exposure to
foreign exchange rate risk in acquiring the kraft linerboard
production line in RMB and in purchasing raw materials
in USD. This strategy was proved to be effective and
contributed a realised income of HK$5 million. On the other
hand, unrealised income of HK$5.6 million recognized as
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments was
the net effect of the provision made for the new contracts
and the reversal of the provision made in the previous year.

The structured borrowing contract again was proved to
be effective as no interest had been incurred. Income
of HK$9.8 million recognized as change in fair value
of structured borrowing was due to the reversal of the
provision made in the previous year.
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B IR R S o T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating results (Continued)

Net profit from operation (net profit for the year before
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments and
structured borrowing) was increased by 12.4% to HK$96.4
million (2006: HK$85.8 million). Significant increase in net
profit for the year by 63.5% to HK$111.7 million (2006:
HK$68.3 million) was due to reversal of changes in fair
values of derivative financial instruments and structured
borrowing for accounting purpose.

Net profit margin for the year ended 31st December, 2007
was maintained at 12.1%. Basic earnings per share was
24.85 HK cents (2006: 17.84 HK cents). The Directors
proposed a final dividend of 4.32 HK cents per share (2006:
4.64 HK cents).

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

During the vyear, the Group received net proceeds of
HK$142.1 million from the placing of shares. Bank balances
and cash declined to HK$153.7 milion (2006: HK$231.6
million) as the funds were used for the upstream investment
project. At 31st December, 2007, net current assets and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of
the Group were HK$121.9 million (2006: HK$257.7 million)
and 1.32 (2006: 2.42) respectively.

During the year, the Group had capital expenditures
amounting to HK$492.7 million for the upstream investment
project. Moreover, the Group also acquired an additional
piece of land in Qingyuan for the project amounting to
HK$13 million.
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BIRE R W A AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, financial and capital resources
(Continued)

As at 31st December, 2007, trust receipt loans increased
by HK$120.5 million. Additional waste paper was kept for
the trial production of kraft linerboard production line and
for minimizing the adverse effect from the ever-rising waste
paper cost. Term loans of HK$214.4 million during the year
were raised for financing the upstream investment project
which led to increase in total bank borrowings (including
bank borrowings and structured borrowings) by HK$140.6
million. Short term and long term bank borrowings increases
by HK$50.8 million and HK$89.8 million respectively. Net
gearing ratio (measured by total bank borrowings net of
cash to equity attributable to shareholders) was 46.4% (2006:
1.3%).

Contingent liabilities

A tax audit had been conducted by the Inland Revenue
Department in December 2004. The Inland Revenue
Department issued protective assessments for the years of
assessment 1998/1999 to 2004/2005 to certain subsidiaries
of the Group. As the tax audit was still in progress, in the
opinion of the Directors, the outcome and impact of this
matter could not be determined with reasonable certainty at
this stage.
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B IR R S o T

OUTLOOK

To complement our upstream business, the Group plans
to add a new corrugator in our downstream facility in
Dongguan in June 2008, and expand our capacity by 12%,
in order to expand our market share.

After the completion of the linerboard line, the Group will
move towards starting construction of the second phase
of the power plant and technology upgrades for our
corrugating medium production line. The new power plant
can provide stable power supply to our corrugating medium
line, avoid the risks of power cuts and reduce operating
costs. At the same time, after the technology upgrade, the
line will be capable of producing both corrugating medium
and linerboard, whilst capacity will also be increased by
20% to 120,000 tonnes of packaging paper. This would
further enhance our operational flexibility and improve
returns for our Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, aged 48, is the chairman of the
Board and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible
for the overall corporate planning, business development
and management of the Group. He has over 23 years of
experience in the corrugated paper-ware industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC. He is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping
and Mr. Hui Sum Tai, and the spouse of Ms. Wong Mui.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 46, is the vice chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for the business development of the Group. He
has over 23 years of experience in the corrugated paper-
ware industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. He is a brother
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, and Mr. Hui Sum Tai.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 41, is the chief executive officer
of the Company and an executive Director. He has joined
the Group since its establishment and is responsible for
the strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group. He has over 21 years of experience in the
corrugated paper-ware industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
He is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum
Ping.

Mr. Wong Wing Por, aged 46, is an executive Director.
He has joined the Group since its establishment and
is responsible for the sales, marketing and production
management of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 21 years of
experience in the corrugated paper-ware industry in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 37, is an executive Director and the
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Hui is responsible
for the financial management of the Group. She is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Hui obtained
a degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours in Accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong in 1992. Prior to
joining the Group in May 1997, she had worked in the
auditing field for around 5 years which included working for
an international accounting firm.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan, aged 45, graduated from the
University of Manitoba in Canada with a bachelor’s degree
of arts in 1985. He thereafter continued to pursue his
legal qualification and completed the law society’s final
examination at Bristol Polytechnic in the United Kingdom
in 1989. Mr. Liu was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 4th September, 2003.
He is currently the senior partner of a law firm, Messrs.
Alvan Liu & Partners, and a China-appointed attesting
officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. He
has been appointed as the legal adviser of a number of
organisations and associations in Hong Kong, including the
Hong Kong Small and Medium Business Association, Wong
Tai Sin District Affairs Advisors Committee and Junior Police
Officers Association H.K.P..

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 46, is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He graduated
from Birmingham University in 1984 with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Commerce (majoring in Accounting). Mr. Chee
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 4th September, 2003. He is currently a
senior partner of Chan Chee Cheng & Co, a firm of Certified
Public Accountants. He had worked in two international
accounting firms in Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Chee
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. In addition to
his appointment to the Company, he is also an independent
non-executive director of Apex Capital Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 60, has over 23 years of
experience in enterprise management and manufacturing
operation management. Mr. Wong was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on
15th September, 2004. Mr. Wong is currently shareholder
and director of certain metal ware and plastic ware
manufacturing companies/corporations with manufacturing
plants located in the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wong Mui, aged 42, is the deputy general manager
of the Group. She has worked for the Group since
its establishment and is responsible for the general
administration of the Group. Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok.

Mr. Yuen Fu Keung, aged 45, is the project manager of
the Group. He is responsible for project development and
implementation of the Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the
University of Bath in the United Kingdom in 1986 where
he obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical
and Electronic Engineering with first class honours. Prior to
joining the Group in November 2003, he had over 8 years
of working experience in corrugating machinery and control
systems.

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 36, is the accounting manager
of the Group. She is responsible for the daily accounting
operations of the Group. Ms. Wong graduated from the
University of Houston — Downtown in the US with a
bachelor degree of business administration majoring in
accounting in 1994. Prior to joining the Group in May 2002,
she had worked in the auditing field for around 7 years
which included working for an international accounting firm.
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The board of directors (“Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) are applied
and implemented is explained in the following parts of this
Corporate Governance Report:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE COMPANY

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance to enhance shareholder value and
safeguard shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate
governance principles emphasise a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to shareholders.

The Board of the Company believes that good corporate
governance practices are increasingly important for
maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor
confidence.

The CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules sets out the principles of good corporate governance
and two levels of corporate governance practices:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to
comply with or to give considered reasons for any
deviation; and

(b)  recommended best practices for guidance only, which
listed issuers are encouraged to comply with or to
give considered reasons for deviation.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles, code provisions as set out in the CG
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

With the exception of the Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.2 and
B.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year under review.

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of its business and to reviewing its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure that they
comply with the statutory and professional standards and
align with the latest developments.

THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance. The Board has
delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibilities for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group. In addition, the Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Delegation of Management Functions

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making
in major Company matters, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEe (&

(Continued)

Board Composition EEEAK

Membership of the Board is currently made up of 8 FEEeHAE/\KEBRK  BIEAMHIT
members in total, with 5 executive directors and 3 EFEN BT IFRITES -

independent non-executive directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following ARARIEFZHUATEFTHAK
directors:

Executive Directors: HITEE :

Hui Sum Kwok — Chairman FARE — E£F

Hui Sum Ping — Vice-Chairman FRY — BlER

Hui Sum Tai — Chief Executive Officer FRE — THEBEH

Wong Wing Por T &)

Hui Yuen Li — Company Secretary and Member ATmmE — RARWERFHEZESKE

of Remuneration Committee

Independent Non-Executive Directors: B TESE -

Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan ~ — Chairman of Audit Committee BEE — EREESERE

Chee Man Sang, Eric — Member of Audit Committee WRE — BERLTEeKERTHEES®
and Chairman of Remuneration *FE
Committee

Wong Chu Leung — Member of Audit Committee and E=ikS — BEZZE@NTFNEESRE

Remuneration Committee

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all EEHRE (DB)MREEMRANRAR A
corporate  communications issued by the Company from BEAMZE AR BEHP FURE - AQ
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent TARIE ETR AT A BEF Y E B é‘F
non-executive directors are expressly identified in all HITESE o

corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are FEEeNEB HACBERENRFE14RIGEETE
disclosed under Management Profile on pages 14 and 15. ERFERHE-
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Board at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-
executive directors have been invited to serve on the Audit
and Remuneration Committees of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Board as a whole is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company is appointed for a specific term and shall be
subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
all directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. The Company’s Articles of
Association deviate from Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code which provides that any new director appointed by
the Board during the year shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting after appointment, when
he/she shall be eligible for re-election.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
where necessary.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs
Hui Sum Ping, Wong Wing Por and Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (Continued)

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the
directors standing for re-election at the next forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 30th April, 2008 contains
detailed information of the directors standing for re-election.

Induction and Continuing Development for
Directors

Each newly appointed director receives formal, tailored
and comprehensive induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
adequate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction shall be
supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites
and meetings with senior management of the Company.

The directors are continually updated with developments
in the legal and regulatory regime and the business
and market environments to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional
development for directors will be arranged whenever
necessary.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Board Meetings

e Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31st December,
regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company. The attendance rate was 100%.

The attendance
meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee during the year ended 31st
December, 2007 are set out below:

records of each director at the

EEE (&)

EBABREELERR

REE_ET+LF+_A=+—HL
FE BZTECRTAATHEE K
NEFE R AR R 7 R
BEEVEZDLIERND B EBRE
RBR -EBEZHEERRE100% °

BE-_TZTLFT-_A=1T—HL#F
FEES FTHEEELEREZESS
a%i{4%$2tﬂfaaﬁz%%§IJﬁﬂT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

ERHEERRE

Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
E=pE BE=g FHEES EREER
Hui Sum Kwok TR E 5 N/AA i A 2
Hui Sum Ping 7T AR T 5 N/AT 3 2
Hui Sum Tai BECES 5 N/AT i A 2
Wong Wing Por &) 5 N/AAS i F 2
Hui Yuen Li 150 A 5 1 4
Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan 2 el E 5 N/AA i3 A 4
Chee Man Sang, Eric R A 5 1 4
Wong Chu Leung = 5 1 4
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(Continued)
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Board Meetings (Continued) EF2E2E (E)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Qualified Accountant and
Company Secretary attend all regular Board meetings
and where necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and
keep minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.
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THE BOARD / BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

e  Practices and Conduct of Meetings
(Continued)

According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles
of Association contain provisions requiring directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals. The Chairman of the Board is Mr Hui
Sum Kwok, who provides leadership for the Board and is
also responsible for chairing the meetings and managing
the operations of the Board and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is Mr
Hui Sum Tai, who is responsible for running the Company’s
businesses and implementing the Group’s strategic plans
and business goals.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer to ensure balance of powers and effective
segregation of duties. The Board of Directors considers that
the responsibilities of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer respectively are clear and distinctive and no written
terms on division of responsibilities between Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are necessary. This deviates from
the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates
that the division of responsibilities between chairman and
chief executive officer should be established and set out in
writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises 3 members,
namely Mr Chee Man Sang, Eric (Chairman), Ms Hui Yuen
Li and Mr Wong Chu Leung, and the majority of them are
independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include:

° To make recommendations on the establishment of
procedures for developing remuneration policy and
structure of the executive directors, which policy shall
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration;

° To make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of the executive directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° To review and approve the remuneration packages
of the executive directors by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practices and conditions; and

° To review and approve the compensation
arrangements for the executive directors.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources
data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee
consults with the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the vyear
ended 31st December, 2007 and reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages as well as the annual bonuses of the executive
directors for the year under review. The attendance rate of
the Remuneration Committee Meeting was 100%.

Under the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, the remuneration of the senior
management of the Company is not considered by the
Remuneration Committee and this deviates from the Code
Provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. Currently, the remuneration
of the senior management is attended by the Chairman
and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan (Chairman),
Mr Chee Man Sang, Eric and Mr Wong Chu Leung (including
one independent non-executive director with the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the qualified accountant, compliance officer (if any),
internal auditor or external auditors before submission
to the Board.

° To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31st December, 2007 to review the financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
the report of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes, and
the re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance
records of these Audit Committee Meetings are set out
under “Board Meetings” on page 24.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st
December, 2007 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(its “Own Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with
its Own Code throughout the year ended 31st December,
2007.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2007.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The directors are responsible for overseeing
the preparation of financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards are complied with.

The Management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Company put to
the Board for approval. The Board has received from the
senior management the management accounts, and such
explanation and relevant information as necessary to enable
the Board to make an informed assessment for approving
the financial statements.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities for the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 54 and 55.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, is set out below:

Category of services

NEEBRMRZEA2ME (&)

REBFRN ARG RIMEZEENEE B
ERS BTSN/ BN ZMEEINMT

Fee paid/payable

R E®E ef/EFER

HKS

T

Audit services %8R 7 1,300,000
Non-audit services IEZE R

— Preliminary review — VI EH 20,000

— Compliance review — AR ERN 108,000

1,428,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company.

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
system of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board maintains an adequate internal control system to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets
of the Company.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to
facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks
and to safeguard assets of the Group. The internal auditor
shall review and evaluate the control process and monitor
any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for exchange of views between the Board and
the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well
as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee and, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, normally attend the
annual general meeting and other relevant shareholder
meetings to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.hopfunggroup.com, where extensive
up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted available for public access.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholder meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholder meetings are
contained in the Company’s Articles of Association. Details
of rights to demand a poll are included in all circulars to
shareholders and explained in the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after the shareholder meeting at
which voting is taken on a poll.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2007 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 56.

On 15th June, 2007, a dividend of 4.64 HK cents per
share, amounting to approximately HK$19,669,000, was
paid to the shareholders of the Company as final dividend
for 2006.

An interim dividend of 1.68 HK cents per share, amounting
to approximately HK$8,107,000 in respect of 2007 was
calculated by reference to 482,572,000 shares in issue on
5th October, 2007 and was paid to the shareholders of the
Company on 12th October, 2007.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of 4.32 HK cents per share to the shareholders
of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members on 26th May, 2008.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out on
pages 135 to 136.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2007 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 59
and 60.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wong Wing Por

Ms. Hui Yuen Li

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
Mr. Wong Chu Leung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Mr. Wong Wing Por and
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan shall retire from office by rotation in
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of one
year commencing 15th September, 2007, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographical details of the directors and senior

management of the Company are set out in Management
Profile on pages 14 to 16 of this report.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

B (#)
ARTEEESBIHNTEFRELTR

AR 2 B MIEH 2 FERRE - AR 7
R EREUFNTEFTIRBILIAL -

AAREEReREEEBREENEN AF
MEI4EF1CEEEEBREBE -
B

EVNSE- 3 PSR NS R R TS
B 526 ©

TERBAATDBRERENZEH

share options during the year:

Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled atend of
Exercisable  at beginning during during during the year
Category Option type Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year FR
8 BREEE RHBAH THE FUHKGTE  FARYE  FRAR  FREE  HRTE
(Note 1) HK$
(1) AT
Directors
Bz
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (Note 2) B 20.7.2004 1.330 450,000 - (450,000) - -
STAREIE A (M3Eo) C 4.11.2004 1104 2,250,000 - (2,250,000) - -
D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 1,893,000 - - 1,893,000
Mr. Hui Sum Ping B 29.7.2004 1.330 950,000 - (950,000) — —
ARTRE C 4.11.2004 1.104 2,250,000 - (2,250,000 - -
D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 1,893,000 - - 1,893,000
Mr. Hui Sum Tai B 29.7.2004 1.330 70,000 - (70,000) - =
TRERE C 4.11.2004 1104 2,250,000 - (2,250,000) - -
D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 3,678,360 - - 3,678,360
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BIRE (&Z)
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled at end of
Exercisable  at beginning during during during the year
Category Optiontype  Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year E&
EHl BREES RERH TRE EOHATE  FARE AR Frd#E HAGR
(Note 1) HK$
(H:1) BT
Mr. Wong Wing Por B 29.7.2004 1.330 970,000 - (970,000) - -
TRREE C 4.11.2004 1.104 2,250,000 - (2,250,000) - -
D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Ms. Hui Yuen Li 29.7.2004 1.330 3,170,000 - (3,170,000) - -
ATt 29.5.2007 2.640 - 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 120,000 - - 120,000
BEELE
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 120,000 - - 120,000
MRAELE
Mr. Wong Chu Leung D 29.5.2007 2.640 - 120,000 - - 120,000
8k
14,610,000 10,424,360  (14,610,000) — 10,424,360
Other employees 29.7.2004 1.330 2,016,000 — (2,016,000 - -
AfES 29.5.2007 2.640 - 7,950,000 - - 7,950,000
2,016,000 7,950,000 (2,016,000) - 7,950,000
Total all categories
R R @t 16,626,000 18,374,360  (16,626,000) - 18,374,360
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options granted is
determined by Directors at each time when the options
are granted. Holders of share options granted under the
Company’s share option scheme may only exercise their
options during the exercisable periods as follows:

Option type B
B MR AR

Option type C

CHIERE DB R 5

Option type D

BRE(E)
B 2
1 BB B R R R

R HEE o AR B BB AT Bl IR T B U R
BAETRUATITERTERE 2BRE:

Maximum % of share options exercisable

AITHEBREZESADL

1.1.2005 - 31.12.2005 1.3.2005 - 28.2.2006  1.3.2008 - 28.2.2009  up to 50%

& & 0] ##50%

1.1.2006 - 31.12.2006 1.3.2006 - 28.2.2007  1.3.2009 - 28.2.2010 up to 756% (to the extent not already

1.1.2007 - 31.12.2007 1.3.2007 - 29.2.2008 1.3.2010 - 28.2.2011

2. Out of the 1,893,000 share options granted, Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok was directly interested in 1,393,000 share options
and was deemed to be interested in 500,000 share options
owned by Ms. Wong Mui, who is the spouse of Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok and a member of the senior management of the
Group.

The weighted average closing price per share of the
Company’s shares on the five trading days immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised was
HK$3.03.

At 31st December, 2007, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 18,374,360, representing
approximately 3.8% of the shares of the Company in issue
at that date.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2007, the
interests and/or short positions of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies, were as follows:

EEEEERERAA /| —CEELEFER

A
L]

EERKRO -HERORESFZ
e

BREXBEEEIN R_ZTEZTLF+ A
=+ —H ZERARRAREEZKBEGH
(TEFRPEGR P/ RAEERFLZ
Bk ARBELTARNEFETE
FRGNBETRCHE AR NEBHE
RHAMARAR ([BMXMDE EFRESF
ZHMEATR AR REMEBEAE (E& L
EHELBAEGERN) 2B D BERD REF
FHE 2w R/BORRIT

(a) Shares (a K&
Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
Espg KAR/MBEEER &% EEHERER BRI
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Founder of a discretionary 252,000,000 shares 52.18%
SREEE /NS trust / interest of controlled Long posttion (Note 1)
corporations 252,000,000 % 7
RREFAA 2 (Fren)
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Beneficial owner 7,702,000 shares 1.60%
TRARE NG EXBAA Long posttion
7,702,000/ & f3
e
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of spouse 500,000 shares 0.10%
TRELE NG B ER Long posttion
500,000/ f 3
e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 252,000,000 shares 52.18%
SRTEEE /NS trust / interest of controlled Long posttion (Note 1)
corporations 252,000,000 % {7
RREEFAITA e (att)
REEEER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

EERKRD HEROEGESZ
Bz (F)

(a) K& (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
EEfR KAR/MBEEER &% EHHARER TR
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 6,436,000 shares 1.33%
HECE s NG ERBAA Long position
6,436,000 & it 13
e
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of a controlled Nil (Note 1) —
AREEE /NS corporation & ()
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 6,246,000 shares 1.29%
TRRRE NG EXBAA Long posttion
6,246,000 & i3
354
Mr. Wong Wing Por Company Founder of a discretionary Nil (Note 1) -
THERE /N trust /interest of controlled £ (Hf3%1)
corporations
RREFATA
REEERER
Mr. Wong Wing Por Company Beneficial owner 5,920,000 shares 1.23%
T&REE YN EREBA Long position
5,920,008 % {7
e
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 3,670,000 shares 0.76%
TRAT L NG ExEA Long posttion
8,670,008 i {7
e
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(Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

SEEEERERDA /

A
]

tEEH

EERRO -HERORESFZ

Bz (F)

(a) Kt (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
EEfR AAR/MBEEER g% EHHARER BAEDH
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan Company Beneficial owner 222,000 shares 0.05%
BEIBLE /NG ERBAA Long position
222,000 i 7
e
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7,886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
SREEE Limited trust / interest of controlled Long posttion (Notes 1 and 2)
("Hop Fung Industries”) ~ corporations 7,886 & R EE0.01E T 2 i 17
RREFAIA e (M1 k)
REEE#ER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7,886 shares of US$0.01 each 78.86%
SEEEE trust / interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7,886 B R EEO.01% 7T 2 fx 17
RREFATLA 2 (M1ke)
REEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 857 shares of US$0.01 each 8.57%
HECES EREBA Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
857k & IR E H0.015E 7T 2 k{7
2 (WE1ke)
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 1,257 shares of US$0.01 each 12.57%

IRREE

trust / interest of a controlled

corporation
SRETALA/
REEEER

Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
1257R B REEO0.01% 7T 2 B fp
e (H1k)
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EERKRD HEROEGESZ
B (F)

(a) Shares (Continued) (a) Btz (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
EEfR KAR/MBEEER &% EHHARER BAED
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
HEEVS (Holdings) Limited of a discretionary trust / Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
(*Hop Fung Industries interest of a controlled 5,000 SR EE0.01E L. B 1D
BVI") corporation e (H1R)
ERAEEN
RREFAIA
REEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries BVI Beneficial owner / founder 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
SRTEEE of a discretionary trust / Long posttion (Notes 1 and 3)
interest of a controlled 5,000 BB EE0.01E .2 B 1D
corporation e (1K)
EGBEAN
RRETATA
REEERER
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Gong Ming Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
TRARE Paper Ware Factory corporations / short deferred shares of HK$1 each
Limited position of controlled Long and short positions
(“Hop Fung GM™) corporations (Notes 1 and 4)
PGS Fint REZEER/ 3,000,001 & R &
BRAT REEEKR Iz BEREEEER
([5ERH]) e RkE (Wi1ka)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung GM Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
TRTEE SERH trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of
corporations / short HK$1 each
position of controlled Long and short positions
corporations (Notes 1 and 4)
SRETEALA 3,000,0008 & R E &
REEERER/ BT ERZRELR
REEEKA e RKR (Mi1R4)
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UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

SEEEERERR2A

(a) Kt (&)

A
L]

tEEH

EERKRD HEROEGESZ
B (F)

Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
EEfR AAR/MBEEER g% EHHARER TR
Mr.Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1 and 4) -
AREEE BN corporation / short & (151 R4)
position of a controlled
corporation
REEEER/
REEERR
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1 and 4) —
IRERE X IN corporation / short & (M1 R4)
position of a controlled
corporation
REEEER/
s e
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Fung Kong Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRARE Paper Ware Factory corporations / short deferred shares of
Limited position of controlled HK$1 each
("Hop Fung FG") corporations Long and short positions
BEagfmE REEEER (Notes 1, 4 and 5)
ERRA REZEKR 3,000,000 & R E &
([BERE)) BT EREERTR
i RkR (W3 - 4R5)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung FG Founder of a discretionary 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
TRTEE SLEE trust / interest of controlled deferred shares of
corporations / short HK$1 each
position of controlled Long and short positions
corporations (Notes 1, 4 and 5)
PRETETA 3,000,000 &R A E
REERRS/ BT ERZRELR
REERKE i RoKkA (Mat - 4R5)
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(a) Shares (Continued)

44

EERKRD HEROEGESZ
B (F)

(a) K& (&)

Approximate
percentage of
Company / Name of Number and issued share capital
Name of director associated corporation  Capacity class of securities HERTRE
EEfR FAR/MBEEER g% EHFHARER L ER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1, 4 and 5) —
TRREE ALBH corporation / short & (M5t - 4R5)
position of a controlled
corporation
REEEER/
REREAE
Mr. Wong Wing Por Hop Fung FG Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1, 4 and 5) -
ITEREE ALEH corporation / short (M1 4R5)
position of a controlled
corporation
REEEER/
REEEKR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Applewood Forest Limited ~ Founder of a discretionary 1 share of US$1 100%
FRARE trust Long position (Notes 1 and 6)
RREFETLA 1REGEIETZRA
72 (H1R6)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Profit Luck Limited Founder of a discretionary 100 shares of HKS$1 100%
FRARE MEBRAE trust Long position (Notes 1, 6.and 7)
RREFALA 100R B REBIETZRE
e (a1 6R7)
Notes: B 3

The 252,000,000 shares are owned by Hop Fung
Industries. The issued share capital of Hop Fung
Industries is owned as to 78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57%
by Hop Fung Industries BVI, Delight Ocean Limited
(“Delight”) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

1. # 252,000,000 f& & 2 E3 Hop Fung
Industries# 74 ° Hop Fung Industries 2
% 17 i AN 9 B FHop Fung Industries
BVI - Delight Ocean Limited ([ Delight |)
M ARRFTEEBTE.86% * 12.57% K%
8.57% °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is
owned as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19%
by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood
Holdings Limited (“Fullwood”) and Goldspeed Holdings
Limited (“Goldspeed”) respectively. Fullwood is wholly
owned by Pinecity Investments Limited (“Pinecity”)
and Pinecity is wholly owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited (“HSBC”) in its capacity as the trustee
of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust
the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”)
and Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC in its
capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a
discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum
Ping and the discretionary objects of which include
family members of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping
will be deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000
shares under the SFO.

Delight is wholly owned by Richfaith Assets
Management Limited (“Richfaith”) and Richfaith is
wholly owned by HSBC in its capacity as the trustee
of Wong’s 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary trust
the founder of which is Mr. Wong Wing Por and the
discretionary objects of which include family members
of Mr. Wong Wing Por.

Hop Fung Industries is a holding company of the
Company and therefore an associated corporation of
the Company under the SFO. The entire issued share
capital of Hop Fung Industries is US$100 divided into
10,000 shares of US$0.01 each which is owned as to
7,886, 1,257 and 857 shares by Hop Fung Industries
BVI, Delight and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum
Ping is deemed to be interested in the 7,886 shares
of US$0.01 each and Mr. Wong Wing Por is deemed
to be interested in the 1,257 shares of US$0.01 each
in Hop Fung Industries.

SEEERRER2A /| =F

A
L]

tEEH

EERRO -HERORESFZ
B (F)

(a B (&
Bt - (&)

Hop Fung Industries BVIZ E # 17 ix &
DR BEFRBEEE TFRFEE
Fullwood Holdings Limited ([ Fullwood )
M Goldspeed Holdings Limited
(I Goldspeed ) # 511.81% - 11.81% -
38.19% }238.19% ° Fullwood i Pinecity
Investments Limited ([ Pinecity ]) & &
# A - MPinecity HSBC International
Trustee Limited ([ HSBC ) bJAHui & Wong
2004 FamilyTrust2 st A2 D 2 &
BoZiEdh—H2ERERL Halu
ARTAREEE 2REREREE
FTAREN S A 2 RIERK B © Goldspeed i
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited
([ Goldkeen ]) & & # B M Goldkeen
FHSBCLAHSP 2004 Family Trust= &
ANZEDEERB -ZiEERA—EHE
EEFL HEIZARTARTRE 2
BEITHRBETRTEEZRKERK
SeA BEZFRPEGKO - FF
REEERFRTEEZTEHE A
A #%252,000,000/% f& 17 2 #E & o

Delight g Richfaith Assets Management
Limited ([ Richfaith |) & & # A& - M
Richfaith FHHSBCEAWong " s 2004 Family
TustXEAZ I D2 EHEAR - =5
REZRET BRATARIERRK
THE FRGETHRBEBEIRREE
ZHRIEKE e

2. Hop Fung Industries Jy 2K A 7] Z 12 & A
AlCELBEEFRBERN  BA
A A 2 8% B - Hop Fung Industries
ZEMEBEITRAR/I0ET 2 &
10,0000% & f% E fB0.013E T Z & 19 9
A B Hop Fung Industries BVI  Delight
R ARR ST EWEAT,886 + 1,257 12857
BeoRIBEES KBAEKRM  FFREL
ERFRFEEHEWR B BHop
Fung Industries 7,886/% & % M {&0.01
EURH z e T E R kAR
1R & ¥ BHop Fung Industries 1,2570%
BB EME0.01 E LM 2R -
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(a) Shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3.

46

Hop Fung Industries BVI is a holding company of
Hop Fung Industries and therefore an associated
corporation of the Company under the SFO. The
entire issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI
is US$100 divided into 10,000 shares of US$0.01
each which is owned as to 1,181, 1,181, 3,819 and
3,819 shares by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum
Ping, Fullwood and Goldspeed respectively. Under the
SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum
Ping is interested and/or deemed to be interested in
an aggregate of 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each in Hop
Fung Industries BVI.

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of
Hop Fung GM is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100
ordinary shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM are beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group (HK)
Limited (“Hop Fung Group HK”) which is owned as to
78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Holdings
Limited (“Hop Fung Holdings (BVI)"), Mr. Wong Wing
Por and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Holdings (BVI)
is owned as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Goldspeed
respectively. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be
interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares
of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group Company Limited (“Hop Fung Group
(BVI)"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, an
option to purchase from them such 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr.
Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short position in
the underlying shares of the option granted under the
option deed pursuant to the SFO.

EERKRO -HERORESFZ
B (F)

(a KR (E

Hat -

3.

(#&)

Hop Fung Industries BVIJ5Hop Fung
Industries,z 1% I8 2~ & B It 1R & &

R E K §‘J ngﬁ/_\ A 2 AR
[ - Hop Fung Industries BVIZ £l ()
B 17 IR X /1003 T 7%10 000R%
tHx@TEOM%EZHx"' Bl B &F
B & FF AR SR A& - Fullwood &
Goldspeed# & 1,181 - 1,181 » 3,819
53,8100k - BIFEFEH R BAE KO - &
le‘ﬁi&ﬁm?%i%ﬁ&/‘i?ﬁ
7 & # BHop Fung Industries BVI&
5,0008% & % | B0.01E T &k 2 #

?-iﬁ?%??’&ﬁ ' ﬁﬁégi‘%lﬁ/ﬁ ball
FiHop Fung Holdings lelted((Hop
Fung Holdings BV TEEEER
BT AR =R B78.86% ~ 12.57% K&
8.57% -

Hop Fung Holdings (BV)Z B % 1T
BADRBAFHRELE FHRFE
4 K Goldspeedf# 550% * 11. 81%
K:38.19% ° 1RFEFEF L HAE &M -
Ml%i&ﬁn?%i&ﬁﬁ%ﬁA
%AEHS 000,0000% & i% T {B1 7 T &
TXZ? iE LHXZ*Eﬁn"

BIEBBHA-_ZTE=FNATILAZ
BRELE ALEEFBERENRE
AAARRA R Z 2 &K B A alHop Fung
Group Company Limited ([ Hop Fung
Group BV ) HEE &1 - AR B ZE
E%ESOOOOOOHQ#HQ@(EV’%TEZA
L“"EHET RIERR - A It - BRITE

%&HE%’T%W BT ARE R A R AR
$%$ﬂ%&ﬁz%%*ﬁ$ﬁdﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ£?@
BATEEEREY R 2 HEARGD 2K

A
B o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

(a) Shares (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5.

Hop Fung FG is a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop
Fung FG is HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each and 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each. The 3,000,000 non-
voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung FG
are beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group HK. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui
Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung
FG.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003,
Hop Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop
Fung Group (BVI) an option to purchase from them
such 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1
each in Hop Fung FG. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have
a short position in the underlying shares of the option
granted under the option deed pursuant to the SFO.

Applewood Forest Limited (“Applewood”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire
issued share capital of Applewood is US$1 comprises
1 share of US$1 which is owned by HSBC in its
capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family
Trust. Applewood is an associated corporation of the
Company under the SFO. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok is deemed to be interested in the 1 share
of US$1 in Applewood owned by HSBC in its capacity
as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family Trust.

Profit Luck Limited (“Profit”) is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The entire issued share capital of Profit
is HK$100 comprises 100 shares of HK$1 each which
is indirectly owned by HSBC through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Applewood. Details of Applewood are set
out in note 6 above.

EEEEERERAA /| —CEELEFER

EERRO -HERORESFZ
B (F)

(a K (E

Hrst -

5.

(&)

LEEDARRZHMBEAR Bt
TET%;:AL%‘F&HHEJ*W BARAE ZHE
B A B o /:\lgﬂﬂz E‘BE%?‘T%
7K £3,000,1007% 7T 5 B1008% & %
mEWTZE @_HX&SOOOOOOJ&#
A& E B T 2 I8 S %ﬁﬁkﬁx
3,000,000/ & & | f§1 BILTZE
ﬁﬂ? K%ZELHXEEE\EQ%IE/BE

=B - REBLFLBERS  FTH
BAaERTRFEEHWERER

3,000,000k ZF B EEIS TZA LB
S ERERER s -
BEBHA-ZEZE=ZF A+ 1A

2R 9%%@%7&&&1&
% A TAlHop Fung Group (BVI)#% ) i %
1 - DA 18 5 B8 B3,000,0000% = K% E
BIBTZALEEERZRELTR -
Eit  BEFEHRBEKRD FHE
EERFRFPLEORE AERIRE
PEAR M R R AT IR B AR S & 2 4B RS
Wfn 2 KRB °

Applewood Forest Limited
(I Applewood |) Th i B & e X B¥ & &%
A3 2 A B » Applewood Z & #f 2
TRARIZET BEIRBEIEZTZ
B 17 o 5% B A% 19 B HSBCLAHUI & Wong
2004 Family Trust2sEAZ S DA ©
RIEE H & B E % B - Applewood &
RRAF 2B EE - REBEZE S LH
BEO FTARBEEERAEERA
HSBC LAHui & Wong 2004 Family Trust
AT DA 2 Applewood 1/% 1A
1ETTIRD < s o

FEARAR ([FHED TR ES M
D AVAPA/NE] °f'lﬂ§2%*5€§§?ﬁﬂxzﬁ
A100 78 7T » 2 A1000% & A E E178
T2 EEHSBC}%}&E =g
X Al Applewoodf# # # & ° Applewood
2R BE N E X6 o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

(b) Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests
in share options of the Company are set out in the
Section headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31st December,
2007.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2007, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company:

EERKRO -HERORESFZ
B (F)

(b) BERE
EEPREZHBEALIRARABR

BZRESEABEN EEEE | —66 -

BREXEBEEN R_ZTLF+ A
=ST—R EFERWEZHBEAIHERNK
N A A A AR B OR B 2 AR A B - AR R AR
MEBESFHEEEREEIAS -

FERR

RZZBZLF+ZRA=+—RH X2 ARE
BHERPEGROIEBHREFLEIERRA

RADHEITRAZ HREERS FOXR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held Note(s) HERTRA
RREB/MER Y BEEETROEA (i BREA
Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 252,000,000 1 52.18%
ERBEA
Hop Fung Industries BVI Interest of a controlled corporation 252,000,000 1,2 52.18%
REAEER
Fullwood Interest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 1,284 52.18%
R LB
Pinecity Interest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 1,284 52.18%
REEEkEs
Goldspeed Interest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 e o © 52.18%

RBEEER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERR (#F)
(Continued)
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity issued shares held Note(s) HERTRA
RREB/HE LY BEERTRGEA (i BAEAL
Goldkeen Interest of controlled corporations 252,000,000 1,2,85 52.18%
FEEEER
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust/interest of 252,000,000 1,23, 4,5 52.18%
controlled corporations
PREFRENRBEE RS
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner/founder of a discretionary trust/interest 260,202,000 1,283, 4,6 53.88%
SRERAE of controlled corporations/interest of spouse
Enli A VARG AR R/ RE s
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner/founder of a discretionary 258,436,000 1,2, 3,57 53.51%
HRTEEE trust/interest of controlled corporations
ERlBNRRETALARELERR
Montpelier Asset Investment manager 28,388,000 - 5.88%
Management Limited RELR
Notes: M 5E -
1. The 252,000,000 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries. 1. 5%252,000,0000% A% 17 FHop Fung Industries
wA -
2. The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned 2. Hop Fung Industries = B2 % 17 & & HHop

as to 78.86%, 12.57% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Industries
BVI, Delight and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively and Hop Fung
Industries BVI is deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000
shares under the SFO.

Fung Industries BVI * Delight & #F #x 2= 5t £ 5
B 578.86% * 12.57% K&%8.57% - i 1B & &
% & B & 154 - Hop Fung Industries BVI# 18
5 7%252,000,0000% % 17 < #E 2 -
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(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

3.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is
owned as to 11.81%, 11.81%, 38.19% and 38.19% by Mr.
Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Fullwood and Goldspeed
respectively.

The entire issued share capital of Fullwood is indirectly held
by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Pinecity
in its capacity as the trustee of Hui & Wong 2004 Family
Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui
Sum Kwok and the discretionary objects of which include
family members of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok. Accordingly, each of
Fullwood, Pinecity, HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is deemed
to be interested in the 252,000,000 shares under the SFO.

The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly
held by HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation,
Goldkeen in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family
Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui
Sum Ping and the discretionary objects of which include
family members of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly, each
of Goldspeed, Goldkeen, HSBC and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is
deemed to be interested in the 252,000,000 shares under
the SFO.

Of 260,202,000 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested
in 500,000 shares in the Company and is deemed to be
interested in 259,702,000 shares under the SFO as she
is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, a director of the
Company.

Ms. Jian Jian Yi is deemed to be interested in 258,436,000
shares under the SFO as she is the spouse of Mr. Hui Sum
Ping, a director of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st
December, 2007.
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3. Hop Fung Industries BVIZ E % 17 % A< % 5l
AT %L & 7T % & - Fulwood &
Goldspeed# 511.81% - 11.81% ~ 38.19% %
38.19% -

4. Fullwood 2 & &b B % 17 It A< HHSBC 8 H
100% % & % @PinecityL‘AHui & Wong 2004
Family Trust2 5t A2 & » B E 5 B - Hui &
Wong 2004 Family TrustJ3 —IB 2 # =5
BINABHRELA  MEEETER \L%
.ﬁmlf‘ﬁiZéﬁﬁ%ﬁX B EHt - *E%m%&
83 & & 5 - Fullwood * Pinecity * HSBC & #F
AR SE AR B AR R B 7£252,000,0008% A%
Mz o

5. GoldspeedZ % #f B % 17 % A HHSBCE 1B H
100% % 1% 3% [EGoldkeen SAHSP 2004 Family
Trustz % 58 A & o [ £ 5 & - HSP 2004
Family Trust]y —IB 2 #(55t - HAISZ A BFF
HRELEE MEEEAHRBETRTLE
ZREKE -BHIt BIEBEFESHFRBAEKG -
Goldspeed * Goldkeen * HSBC . #F & F 5t &
= Q 18 B ¥ B 7%252,000,00008% % 17 2 #

E)F

6. 7260,202,0000k s - El L T EERS
78 A F]500,0008% B& D #E 25+ DA R R R 1K AR
AREBEHRELEZEB REES LY
B - Eig T W AR B ¥ A 7%2259,702,000
R 2 o o

7. *E%EM%&HM%{MI BEREREZ LT AR
NRIBEEHHRFEEZERB  BiEELLW
7%%%*@‘%2258,436,000%%1’732% o

BREXHBEEN R_ZZTLF+ A
=t+—H ARBLEEBREMEMALR
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed shares
during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company, any
of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate. In addition, save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors, their spouse or children under the age of
18 were granted any right to subscribe for the securities of
the Company or had exercised any such right during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 15% of the Group’s total
turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
53% of the Group’s total purchases and the purchase
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the vyear, the Group did not enter into any
transactions with any connected persons.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$102,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
during the year ended 31st December, 2007, except with
the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

° Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

° There is no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer respectively are
clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof
are not necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Code Provision A.4.2

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy are subject to re-election at next annual
general meeting.

Code Provisions B.1.3

A major deviation from the code provision B.1.3 is
that the Remuneration Committee of the Company
reviews and makes recommendations to the Directors
on the remuneration packages of the executive
directors only but not the senior management.

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management
is attended by the Chairman and/or Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have acted as auditors
of the Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual

general

meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
22nd April, 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
JE N iz B

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 56 to 134, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31st December, 2007, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& N iz B

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31st December, 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22nd April, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

N

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BE_ZZ+FT-A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Mo 5E F#& T FA& T
Turnover 5] 7 925,533 799,936
Cost of sales & B AR (713,899) (617,735)
Gross profit ES| 211,634 182,201
Other income H A YA 8 18,526 17,742
Selling and distribution costs $HE R o KA (45,355) (39,946)
Administrative expenses TR &2 (58,491) (42,614)
Other expenses H R (24,686) (22,081)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 9 (6,837) (8,644)
Change in fair value of structured EEEEATEE
borrowing ) 23 9,762 (12,366)
Realised and unrealised changes in TEemIT A
fair value of derivative financial NFEZEEZER K
instruments R IH 10,561 (4,278)
Profit before taxation 5 /i1 A8 115,114 70,014
Taxation I8 10 (3,370) (1,716)
Profit for the year F 2 FE 11 111,744 68,298
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNE ER A
during the year R Z IR B 13 27,776 21,917
Earnings per share A% 2 I 14
— basic (HK cents) — BN (B) 24.85 17.84
— diluted (HK cents) — #58 OB(L) 24.57 17.43
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/\\/ Ay § F ~ TE\ ig
AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
AN —_EE+FF+_H=+—H
2007 2006
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo 5E FH& T FA& T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB ME&E 15 794,645 348,596
Prepaid lease payments on land use - Hb {5 F &
rights AT E T 16 35,347 22,655
Deposits paid for the acquisition of BEWE - Jﬁﬁ%&
property, plant and equipment HEMNE & 52,621 32,805
882,613 404,056
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 17 191,998 79,450
Trade and other receivables B 5K EMEWRFRIE 18 131,425 119,035
Deposits and prepayments & RIERAR 19,816 8,333
Prepaid lease payments on land use - Hb {5 F
rights FENHEERT 16 809 500
Taxation recoverable Al 3R [B] 7 18 = 42
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIT A 20 2,141 9
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE 2 19 153,735 231,605
499,924 438,974
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H b e3R8 21 114,645 84,824
Taxation payable FERT B IE 17,471 18,475
Derivative financial instruments MESmMIA 20 1,218 4,640
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 236,848 65,611
Structured borrowing HEEEE 23 7,800 7,765
377,982 181,315
Net current assets REBEEFE 121,942 257,659
Total assets less current liabilities #EERATAES 1,004,555 661,715
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AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
R-ZEE+FF+_H=+—H

2007 2006
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FAT
Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital % 2 24 48,292 42,390
Share premium and reserves B 10 i (B K 695,450 441,706
Total equity AR 743,742 484,096
Non-current liabilities kREBARE
Bank borrowings RITEE 22 230,914 133,527
Structured borrowing EEEE 23 26,069 43,426
Deferred taxation IR 3§ 18 25 3,830 666
260,813 177,619
1,004,555 661,715
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 134 REBEIMBEZHEAVBERRERZZST
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of NFUAZ+ZBKESSHE REEERE
Directors on 22nd April, 2008 and are signed on its behalf WA TIHIEERREE:
by:
DIRECTORE % DIRECTORE %
HUI SUM KWOK % B HUI SUM PING #F %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— N7 z_
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TEEREEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BEZZZTLFTZA=ZTHLFE

| =2%

tEFH

Share
Share Share Special Translation options  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RE  ROGE HARE ELRE BRERE {RENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT FTET TR THET FTET TR
At 1st January, 2006 RZZEZERF—H—H 36,792 171,446 (107,444) 1,673 2,144 233714 338,325
Exchange differences arising WX EZHER
on translation of foreign BREBIINER
operations recognised ZERZER
directly in equity — — — 2,524 — — 2,524
Profit for the year FEAE — — — — — 68,298 68,298
Total recognised income FERAMALE
for the year — — — 2,524 — 68,298 70,822
Recognition of equity-settled 238 A Bk 4 45 &
share-based payments 2Bz = = = = 411 = 411
Exercise of share options TEBRE 1,598 17,114 — — — — 18,712
Proceeds on placing of R &M AP E
new shares 4,000 76,000 — — — — 80,000
Share issue expenses on  FRE RN 2 WD ETIH
placing of new shares — (2,257) — — — — (2,257)
Final dividend paid in ER=Z2HF
respect of 2005 RERE — — — — = (15,857) (15,857)
Interim dividend paid in BER-_ZETREF
respect of 2006 FERR B = = = = = (6,060) (6,060)
At 31st December, 2006 RZZEREF
+=-A=+-H 42,390 262,303 (107,444) 4,197 2,555 280,095 484,096
Exchange differences arising WX BEHER
on translation of foreign BREBIINER
operations recognised ZEREE
directly in equity — — — 4,046 — — 4,046
Profit for the year FEANHE — = = = — 111,744 111,744
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BAERBHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BE-_TT+E+-_A=t+RILEE

Share
Share Share Special Translation options  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BAx  RHEE SHEE EXRE BRERE RENHE At
HK$'000  HK§O00  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TET TET THEL TEL TET TEL THAT

Total recognised income FEBRAUALE

for the year — — — 4,046 — 111,744 115,790
Recognition of equity-settled LA RIELE

share-based payments ZUBBE Az — — - 5,206 - 5,206
Exercise of share options 1718 B M 1,662 20,971 = — (2,555) — 20,078
Proceeds on placing of RENRDIERE

new shares 4,240 146,280 — — — — 150,520
Share issue expenses on  ELEFH N 2

placing of new shares R BT - (4,172) - - - (4172)
Final dividend paid in BR-ZETAEF

respect of 2006 RERR B = = = = = (19,669) (19,669)
Interim dividend paid in BE=Z2+F

respect of 2007 FERR B — — — — — (8,107) (8,107)

At 31st December, 2007 R-ZTELF

+-A=1+—H 48,292 425,382 (107,444) 8,243 5,206 364,063 743,742
Note: B EY -
Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of 5 Bl % 1% VN E/\\\ Fﬁ BRRZE § K 7K £ [ ﬁ
investments in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate AEADRERAAIRAPAEEALHERA
amount of the non-voting deferred share capital of Fung Kong Hop w"E Eié i E AR 7 i@ %E LR =F5EHE iﬁ
Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited and Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper LBZ,E%Z MBARIZEBRAEBEZ Z5 -

Ware Factory Limited and the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the group reorganisation in
2008.
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Consohdated Cash Flow Statement
/\\/\ EE/ \/ //“.tiig
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
(2T TE+F T A=+ —HBLFE
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation 754 B A 115,114 70,014
Adjustments for: KEAEH LA A% -
Finance costs 51 15 B AR 6,837 8,644
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE 2,056 —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - - BEMEREITE 34,652 31,098
Release of prepaid lease payments on R + 4 s A RE TR
land use rights MEHIE 493 393
Interest income FLEMA (2,751) (2,643)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  HER
equipment RiEEE 285 55
Share-based payment expense ARG 1D 32 14 2 S i 5,206 411
Unrealised changes in fair value of derivative PEEMIAATE
financial instruments 2 AR 2 B (5,554) 5,105
Change in fair value of structured borrowing HEEEEANFTEZEZE (9,762) 12,366
Operating cash flows before movements in mENE e EB)A
working capital HERERE 146,576 125,443
Increase in inventories FEEM (112,548) (4,713)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N E A fE UG FRE 12 0 (14,446) (16,049)
Increase in deposits and prepayments & R TE A FRIE 0 (11,483) (1,566)
Increase in trade and other payables E 5 K E e FRIEE N 29,821 3,128
Cash generated from operations LEEE RS 37,920 106,243
Income tax paid BB SR (1,168) (4,900)
Income tax refunded BREMEH - 850
Net cash from operating activities RETEEEZRESFE 36,752 102,193
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
HE-_ZEZE+F+-_A=+—RIEE

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#E T FAT
Investing activities REZTH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEEE MENEZRE (440,102) (76,8693)
Increase in deposits paid for the acquisition of BEYE WENMKE
property, plant and equipment BT~ 2T & 52 AN (52,621) (32,805)
Increase in prepaid lease payments THERAERMNEE
on land use rights FRIE N (13,494) (2,224)
Interest received 2 F B 2,751 2,643
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BMEKEE
equipment FT 18 3K18 216 638
Net cash used in investing activities REZBERAZRESEH (503,250) (108,611)
Financing activities il & E B
New bank loans raised IGRITEE 214,400 70,000
Structured borrowing raised IZEEEE = 38,825
Increase (decrease) in trust receipt loans EsEBIEEZE N (i) 120,470 (43,759)
Net proceeds on issue of new shares BT R TS sRIB 5 166,426 96,455
Repayment of bank loans BEBITHEE (66,246) (48,987)
Repayment of structured borrowing EBEEBEE (7,560) —
Dividends paid BIRRE (27,776) (21,917)
Interest paid B F & (15,049) (11,155)
Net cash from financing activities MEETHELE2ESFHE 384,665 79,462
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash HERBEE£EE (L)
equivalents 20 7 28 (81,833) 73,044
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FENBHEERREEE
of the year 231,605 156,037
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgms o g 3,963 2,524
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRXRERBEEEE 153,735 231,605
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash HERBEEEEERDT
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIE S 153,735 231,605
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wm

CRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

S
1.

—EELFFT_A=+T—RHLLEFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). lts parent is
Hop Fung Industries Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding
company is Hop Fung Industries (Holdings) Limited,
a company also incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed under Corporate Information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 33.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
—ETLE+ A=+ —AIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

BHE
2.

64

— = =

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new standard, amendment
and interpretations (“‘new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(*HKICPA”),

which are effective for the Group’s

financial year beginning 1st January, 2007.
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HEAZER

RAFER AEEDEXEA T H
FEAEMAg((EAGHMAE])
B 2 R BRI B (B Y
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AR NEEM RFEEE -

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
EREGEAEIR (BT X)

HKFRS 7
BAEMBRE
HK(IFRIC) —Int

AR BT
7

55 (ERFHERS
— REFETR

HK(IFRIC) —Int

8
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HK(IFRIC)—Int
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EXE R

i
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EXE R

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.

Capital Disclosures

BAKE

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
CRMIAE: HESE

Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

FEREBEFERNEN [BRERERIRLER 2
s JEZ Y0k

Scope of HKFRS 2

EREMBHREERER 2 B

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
MERNESTET A ZEHTGE

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007

S
2.

—EELET A=+ —RILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements
under HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7
retrospectively. Certain information presented in prior
year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has been
removed and the relevant comparative information
based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time in
current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised standards or interpretations that have

A REBI 2B BMB®R
SRR ZER (&)

AEEEDREHNERET L ST ER
FUR BN REBEMBRE ELE
TRZBBEER - RE—FEREEFE
SR ERIFERFE 2 2 ETERNEH
Bl YRNAFEARBEEESER
£ (BRIN) REBAMHREENS
THRZBERMERZ5HEBELRER -

AEBYEREERA TIIERMER
REBMZFHET REERTER SR -

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
EBGEERIE 19 (EI15ET)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
BAGEERF235 (K1{E5])
HKAS 27 (Revised)

BAGEER BT (K{EE5T)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BB HREERFE2R (BRI R)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BB HRE LR EIR (KEET)
HKFRS 8

BB Il E A E85R
HK(FRIC)—Int 11

EX (BB ERELZEY) — 2 BEI1R
HK(IFRIC)—Int 12
EX (EBROTBRERELEEY) — R EBE12R
HK(FRIC)—Int 13
55 (BT HREREZES) —REF1R

HK(FRIC)—Int 14

T (BARMEHRERBEZEE) —RBE 140

Presentation of Financial Statements’

MmEK 225

Borrowing Costs'

R EN

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

bRG KB B S R

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

5% B (G N R 8

Business Combinations?

EY Ao

Operating Segments'’

g«< AA ZaN _LB1

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions®

EEMBHREEAER  KFEREFRG R 5

Service Concession Arrangements*

PR 7% 4% = 22 B

Customer Loyalty Programmes®
BB HETEP

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction*

BEGEUE19% —AEBMNEEZRS  &E
B2 EREMEZEHREE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2009

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
March, 2007

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2008

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group. The
directors have commenced considering the potential
impact of HKFRS 8 but are not yet in a position to
determine whether HKFRS 8 would have a significant
impact on how its results and operations and financial
position are prepared and presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
soO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold, and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or for
administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the financial assets might be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, each significant receivable is assessed for
impairment individually. Assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, together with assets with
similar credit risk characteristics, are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. In
determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables, the Group
considers its past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 5-150 days,
other observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEHE (&)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) @I A (FE)

Financial assets (Continued) BHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) B EE R AE ()

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced BEBBLXEEBERIEMBKEENER
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets HE BRESEWKIBBLUI B HREWK
with the exception of trade receivables, where the HRIEMERFURL B BB RERERP -
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an BEREREPHNEHNIBERER &
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of %%Hﬂlmlﬁf gl - E&B’\ﬂﬁﬁéﬁ
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. BERPAME BAMENSERERRE
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, BT AR

it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity BBEBREE

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a SEREERT 2 MBaERBREAKEE
group entity are classified according to the substance TADRBEERZH ZHEERT K E
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of BEEBRAKETRE 2 EEZDE -

a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial liability.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liability designated as
at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near future; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if it contains one or more embedded
derivatives. HKAS 39 permits such a contract (asset
or liability) in its entirety to be designated as at
FVTPL. Accordingly, the Group has designated its
structured borrowing that contains one or more
embedded derivatives as a financial liability at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBE(E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) 2T A (&)

Equity instruments RATLTA

Equity instruments issued by the Company are N E fﬁZ%ﬁIﬁ)ﬂEE W B 18
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue B (MBREEBITHRAR)LER -

costs.

Derivative financial instruments LT A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at METABERERTETIESNEL
the date a derivative contract is entered into and HZR¥EHER Eéﬁf‘xlé‘# HAKE
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value Qi@i%ﬁ.ﬁr; AT S d s S B 1R BN B
at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or RIBERER BRIFTETRDEER
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, EROEFTE  REBERT  #RE
unless the derivative is a designated and effective w2 BRBURR TR ZEE -
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the

recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives WEANETET A

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts WM ERNETET A ZRAR RS- H
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks EI 297 BBy R BRI R B B R
and characteristics are not closely related to those ENTHFREBERRERATEFE
of the host contracts and the host contracts are H# E’\\#MEI SRAMBEZITETE
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value HARMEAHOHE -

recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7th November,
2002 and vested on or after 1st January, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
continue to be held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7th
November, 2002, or granted after 7th November, 2002
and vested before 1st January, 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements
until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the leases transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

S8 (E)

EJGRAMBREME - NEEEH
REXBZEERBBENRNEER
CEREXHARAER KGR
(BVETT) - MEWA RSB TRZFE
ZFYERETHRE  BRIFERNZH
A 9 i 3R K IR R B0 AU Bl Gm - L B R
TRRARRXSERZERER A
EEZERZRE(NE) DERERK
ZEIBy (ERFEE) ZFERLE
BMORBIEBRHEZMEAANRE
R A HERR o

EE X

W REREERTKEEZEEE

EEERABREANERRTEEL

KA - BRABEEXANEEEKREA

ERTEALIHEERTHRAEL -
EEEEFARATHEERFERE
REMRRZIBZERA  RABETEAR
ZEE R o

%ﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬁﬁ CEEZHER
B R AR

83



Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/T\

& B

S EE:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
—EELET-AS+—RILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

S
3.

84

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense when employees

have

rendered service entitling
contributions.

them to the

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of

assets and

liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources. The estimates and associated

assumptions

are based on historical experience and

other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of

financial year.

assets and liabilities within the next
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of derivatives and other
financial instruments

As described in note 6(c), the directors of the
Company use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market.

For derivative financial instruments, (i.e. forward
foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps),
assumptions are made based on market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instruments. For
structured borrowing, details are set out in note 6(a)
and note 23.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in
notes 22 and 23, net of bank balances and cash, and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. BEXEMERE (&)

The directors of the Company review the capital KA EETFHRTELRAEE - EAR
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, FER—E D EEEEREESHRAME
the directors consider the cost of capital and the HEANHEBERR BEESHESR -
risks associates with each class of capital. Based AREEBBE BRSNS BT B
on recommendations of the directors, the Group BN RETHEENEBELOREGE
will balance its overall capital structure through the I N E R E AR -

payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the

redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. E®MI A

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a £MTAZHEF

2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAET

Financial assets BMisEE
Fair value through profit or loss AAFEEFABREE
Held for trading BIER S 2,141 9
Loans and receivables (including cash E X EEWKZE (B81HEH 4
and cash equivalents) NESEE) 278,499 350,482
280,640 350,491
Financial liabilities g S =R
Fair value through profit or loss ARAFEF AEZRT
Held for trading BHIER 5 1,218 4,640
Structured borrowing (see below) #wEEE (R TX) 33,869 51,191
Amortised cost B85 Ak A 582,407 283,962

617,494 339,793
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. £WMIA (&)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@ BT AEZHEE (&)
(Continued)
Structured borrowing (note) AEEE (i)
2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THET

Difference between carrying amount and BEEIEE BB FEE 2

outstanding principal amount to be REEXSEHE
paid at maturity 2 EF
Carrying amount measured at fair value 2 A FE:T 8 2 BEE(E 33,869 51,191
Amount payable at maturity FHHENSRE (31,265) (38,825)
2,604 12,366
Note: The fair value is estimated using a discounted Wix: RAFERBEAEMNBEEZ

cash flow analysis based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and market rates
adjusted for specific features of the instrument.
The change in fair value was mainly due to
the number of days for which Spread Rate
(as defined in note 23) is greater than -0.05%.
The valuation is based on the interest rate
curves, their volatility and correlation, and
foreign exchange rate. Details of the structured
borrowing is included in note 23. The fair value
was quoted by bank holding credit risk margin
constant. The fair value attributable to change
in its credit risk is considered minimal.

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and structured
borrowing. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(b)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Market risk

Currency risk

A significant portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases of raw materials are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s manufacturing
operations are located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, trade receivables, trade payables
and structured borrowing are denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”), and United States dollars
(“USD”). The Group currently does not have
a formal currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and manages it by entering into
certain forward foreign exchange contracts.

6. ©WMI A (&)
b) BEEEEEGERHKE
(%)
715 JE B
£ B

REEEB KNG #HE MR AR
BHNLBTINE AEBEZHE
EBURFEARLME(H
B 1) e

REEWE T KB QB AN
TRHNWEE  SAKBEEARZI
KRk -BETRITESR BHE
WHKIE B HREMNRBERERE
TMAEMUAE%D&%E
(IZTDIME - AEBE R KA E
BIEENE L P HEK- %ﬁ'
EEEHIMNERMETERE A
%ﬂﬁi%?L%%[é&%ﬁ
EITERE -

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts REEB AEENEBEERE
of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary BEENEEENINZINESE
liabilities denominated in currencies other than MEEKEENEBAGBZHREE
the respective functional currencies of the N
relevant group entities are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE 81&
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T FAE T FE T TA T
RMB AR 15,079 44,510 7,273 19,363
usD ETT 23,007 51,207 57,004 62,698
Other =i} 1,901 — - —
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where
the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities strengthen 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit for the year,
and the balances below would be negative.

6. WM I A (&)

(b)

RMB Impact
ARBZ2HE
2007

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET FET THET

HEEREEEERBKE
(%)

mEmE (&)
KR 7T

TRFNAERE FREEEEE
2B EBHBBEINE A ERE
B5%CHRAE - 5% R/MEEERE
ANEBRNEERINER BT 2%
RRE-WHEERREYERM
EEEE 2R REDNTE
BREUAIINEFEZHMARATREEE
BR WHREBRABRBAERNBUR
BOE &R 25% &) o T3 EHEXT
EHSEEEB 2L EE LN
HNEE FHES% P S B 12 F B 315
MmefBEAEEEE 2INEER
HIERE N B (E5% - 1§ %Tif
f'J/FﬁLﬁR$B#&$H&ZWE
TAEHREE RBEE -

US dollars Impact
EnZ¥
2006 2007 2006

Increase (decrease) in ) 12 hn
profit Om )

390 1

,257 (i) (1,700) (675)()

(i) This is mainly attributable to the foreign
currency relating to monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currency
other than the respective functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

() TEREUNEHESEMEBS
BB AN B IIE
ZEBHEEERSEEEEE
BT 3% B 2 HNEE o
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(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HEEREEEHERKE

90

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings
(see note 22 for details of these borrowings).
The management monitors the interest rate
exposure and manages it by entering into certain
interest rate swaps contracts (see note 20 for
details of these interest rate swaps contracts).

In respect of the structured borrowing, the
repayment amounts are based on the spread
rates between 10-year US$-International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)-Swap Rate
and 2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate, the entire
borrowing is designated as fair value through
profit or loss as disclosed in note 23.

(%)
w B mE ()
HRE AT ()
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M 3 AR BB B SMNE R o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and
Prime rate arising from the Group’s borrowings
denominated in HKD and USD.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to variable-
rate bank borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the balance sheet date was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings, if interest rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December, 2007
would decrease/increase by HK$2,339,000 (2006:
decrease/increase by HK$996,000).

6. $WMTITE (&)
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SEFLF LA -RALERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

For structured borrowing, the number of
business days in the period for which Spread
Rate < -0.05% is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If 8 (2006: 8) of business days more in the
period for which Spread Rate < -0.05% and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st December, 2007
would decrease by HK$911,000 (2006: decrease
by HK$1,129,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
structured borrowing.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has
increased during the current year mainly due to
the increase in variable rate debt instruments.

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €WMIA (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) HEREEEHERKE

and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit ratings, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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FEmE (&)
EREEERR AKEE
EEE§K @AEEEMﬂF
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SEFLF LA -RALERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Regarding the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants. Details of which are set
out in note 22.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as
a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st
December, 2007, the Group has available
undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$35,000,000 (2006: nil).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis, undiscounted net cash (inflows)/outflows
are presented.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ®RWIA (#&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives b) BEEEBEZEGERKE
and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBELERE (&)
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB 2 RFIE R X
Weighted Total
average 3 months undiscounted Carrying
effective  Less than to 1 year Over 5 cash flows  amount at
interest rate 1 month  1-3 months =@A 1-2 years years ArEHEL  31.12.2007
nE¥FY —EAR —Z={EA E—F —E@F A"FNUE MERE RELE
FEF®  HKP000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
% TET TAT TET FTET FTAT FTAT THET
2007 3 2 %:3
Non-derivative FITERBEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEN B - 114,645 - - - - 114,645 114,645
Variable rate FEF &
bank borrowings RITEE 44 45,251 95,662 110,656 99,694 145,888 497,151 467,762
Structured borrowing EREE - - 3,900 3,900 7,800 15,665 31,265 33,869
159,896 99,562 114,556 107,494 161,553 643,061 616,276
Derivatives settled net BRELE2HTETRA
Interest rate swaps =45 1 11 45 131 87 7 281 249
Forward foreign BRHNERL
exchange contracts 155 253 502 168 - 1,078 969
166 298 633 255 7 1,359 1,218
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

SRT A (&)

(b) HEREEE
(%)

HEEZEE ()

EZEABERHE

RBEERFIEmEER (F)

Weighted Total
average 3 months undiscounted Carrying
effective  Less than to 1 year Over 5 cash flows  amount at
interest rate 1 month  1-3 months =@A  1-2 years years AWHEFEE  31.12.2007
nEFHY —HEArn —Z=fA 2% —-E@MF RFNUE MELE KREAE
B & HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR THT TR TR TR THT
2006 —EERE
Non-derivative FITERBAR
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 N E i fE 4 208 — 84,824 — — — — 84,824 84,824
Variable rate ZEF X
bank borrowings BIIEE 4.7 15,019 13,654 44,838 53,895 87,557 214,963 199,138
Structured borrowing HEEE - - 3,882 3,883 7,765 23,295 38,825 51,191
99,843 17,536 48,721 61,660 110,852 338,612 335,153
Derivatives settled net ~ BRFELEZHT4ATA
Interest rate swaps | & 4 3 6 7 30 27 13 83 50
Forward foreign EHINES 1
exchange contracts 1,088 (164) 2,584 1,296 - 4,804 4,590
1,094 (157 2,614 1,323 13 4,887 4,640
(c) Fair value (c) =FE

The fair value of financial assets and financial MHREELTEAaEZ AT EE

liabilities are determined as follows: T -

. the fair value of financial assets and e  HEBEBREBRRRIEGHLNE
financial liabilities with standard terms and BRBEmEEEWKE
conditions and traded on active liquid ErXVMBAGZATETS
markets are determined with reference to RI2EMSEEARE HER
quoted market bid prices and ask prices g Rk

respectively; and
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SEFLFTAS T -RALERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value (Continued)

o the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

° for derivative financial instruments (ie
forward foreign currency contracts and
interest rate swaps), assumptions are
made based on market rates adjusted for
specific features of the instruments. For
structured borrowing, details are set out in
note 6(a) and note 23.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Turnover

received and
net of

Turnover represents the amount
receivable for goods sold during the year,
discounts.

Segment information

All of the Group’s turnover and contribution to profit
are attributable to the manufacturing and sales of
paper-ware products and over 90% of the Group’s
turnover and contribution to operating profit is
attributable to customers who have their manufacturing
base in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis of segment
is presented.

6.
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 7. EXBERBER (Z)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment information (Continued) S EEH (F)
As at 31st December, 2006 and 31st December, RZEZERF+-A= ‘T’ —BERZ
2007, substantial assets, especially those property, TE+E+ A= —1— P REEKES
plant and equipment, of the Group are located in the MmMEBEE(LERME F}?‘g kEHE)Y
PRC. RS
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hibr A
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH& T FABTT
Claims received from suppliers BRERREMS 18 555
Exchange gain, net SR B RFE 5,337 1,511
Interest income A B A 2,751 2,643
Scrap sales BRI E 1,346 4,287
Service income from customers B B & U B AR 75 Ug A 2,543 2,303
Sundry income HIEWA 6,531 6,443
18,526 17,742
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BI#E A
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly HARAFANBNZ
repayable within five years RITEEZFE 14,869 10,730
Interest on discounted bills BRIR E= I F] B 180 425
Total borrowing costs BEXANERE 15,049 11,155
Less: amounts capitalised to property, plant & : B FZWE  HE &
and equipment R ELRSE (8,212) (2,511)
6,837 8,644
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9. FINANCE COSTS (Continued) 9. B#AAE (EF)
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended REBEE_ZEFTLtF+_HA=1T—H8H1
31st December, 2007 arising on the general borrowing FENEAEE —HKREELERER
pool of the Group were calculated by applying a ZEERAGERPWERIZER
capitalisation rate of approximately 5.1% (2006: 4.7%) B EABSAR(ZEE NF 1 4.7%) 5
to expenditure on the qualifying assets. EimiSH o
10. TAXATION 10. Bi1R
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
The charge comprises: MIE B
Current taxation B EA 6 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBFEH 2,141 1,646
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — FEPEMEH 3,431 70
5,572 1,716
Overprovision in prior years: Z B F SRR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BENER (5,366) —
Deferred taxation (note 25) EIEFIE (B 5E25) 3,164 =
3,370 1,716

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the

year.

A portion of the Group’s profits are earned by the

LA G 1 BT B AR B O A IR
117.5% ) TR E

HEABERE
17.5% (ZZEERF ¢

REBHBD %‘J/FEJEEEKE.*ETE/x
B Bl 1T I B R OR B AR A S 2 R

Macau subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under
the Macau SAR’s Offshore Law. Pursuant to the
Macau SAR’s Offshore Law, such portion of profits
are exempted from Macau complimentary tax, which
is currently at 12% of the profits. Further, in the
opinion of the directors, that portion of the Group’s
profit is not at present subject to taxation in any other
jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

B B8 22 ) PT R ER $ETJ§/7<FEJ¢T%JTTEZE
BEERE  ZEH N EHBEGWNRPE
B (B AT MR 2 12%EU0) < 1o
%%*’7% B AT AR BE & 0 AB IR H
BARASEREMEZEMEMBE
RN ATIE -

\
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—ETEFEF+A=T—HILFE
TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the major operating PRC subsidiaries of the
Group are exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for two years starting from the first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in
the following three years.

On 16th March, 2007, the People’s Republic of
China promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China. On 6th December, 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations
of the New Law. The New Law and Implementation
Regulations will unify the tax rate from 24% to 25%
for subsidiaries operating in the PRC from 1st January,
2008. For the PRC subsidiary started the 50%
reduction in the income tax rate, the reduction will be
based on the 25% new tax rate. Moreover, 2008 will
be deemed to be the first profit making year for the
PRC subsidiary that is entitled to the tax concession.
Tax rate applied in the deferred tax calculation has
been adjusted accordingly.

10.

BiIR (%)
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PRS- H1& = F BB %50% 1 % F 5
o

RZZETLF=ZATXB REFEA
REAMBEESREIFES  PEARKM
l%%¢$AE CAI B b X PR 1S BOA
(TFHBREAD - R_ZFFTEF+ AN
SN $!!%h%%ﬁﬁ%§%%ﬁ
%ﬁ%&?m%ﬁ%%¢lmgzw

RAIZRER _ZTZTNF—-HA—H
%_EE24%,» 525% - HNEHBRER
BAOB0%FT B M XM T EKBEAR A
8RBl 2 1 AR IR T B R25%5T & o A
“ER) N\FHEARERESHEE
BzTBENBARNEEENEE - &£
SHERERIAR - EHERA R EEL A
JE 2 o



EEEEERERAA /| —CEELEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B ISR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BE_ZT+FT-A=+—HILEFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. Bi18 (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the FARIEX H B S W KPR B A
profit before taxation per the consolidated income MEz HERMT

statement as follows:

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FE T
Profit before taxation i 5 A1 115,114 70,014
Tax at Hong Kong Profits RB BB E17.5%: &
Tax rate of 17.5% Z T8 20,145 12,252
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRBA Z BT E
tax purpose (15,524) (13,751)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PA B A 2 B2
for tax purpose 1,825 1,258
Overprovision in respect of prior years BAFEBBEEEG (5,366) —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEEBEEBZHEZE — 222
Utilisation of tax loss previously not FRAERARER 2 HERIE
recognised a €3
Tax effect of deferred tax assets Rl AR ERIEIE %)':E 15
previously not recognised BEZMBTE (38) (75)
Effect of tax exemption/different tax rate R R 2 EA e R IR/
of PRC subsidiaries RRRz & 1,980 (88)
Others Hi 348 1,961
Tax charge for the year FEMIBHEZ 3,370 1,716
Contingent liabilities relating to taxation of the Group ERAARSERBE XA EEHNHTE
are set out in note 30. 30 °
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERHE
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
TE T FA T
Profit for the year has been arrived at F 2 AE 2 B Rat A
after charging and crediting: % & 18 :
Allowance for doubtful debts AR 2,056 —
Auditors’ remuneration = BLRD B & 1,300 1,000
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR S 2 F &K A 713,899 617,735
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - E kRGBT E 34,652 31,098
Release of prepaid lease payments & 0] 4 b {58 FA M TE A
on land use rights HEFE 493 393
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE &
plant and equipment REEE 285 55
Operating lease rental for warehouse and PEERBAERLE
office premises HEHES 57 50
Staff costs B TKA
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) =M (FHaE12) 12,463 9,207
Other staff HMBET
— salaries and other allowances — ¥ & N H A ERL 25,501 18,493
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIK &8 F 5T 2] 7 R 677 448
— share-based payments — BRIz 2,382 55
41,023 28,203
Changes in fair value of derivative financial PTELRTERNFTEEF
instruments
— realised —B &R 5,007 827
— unrealised — R EIR 5,554 (5,105)
10,561 (4,278)
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

12. EEMEREEHF M

Directors EE
Other emoluments
Hb i<
Salaries Retirement Share-
and other benefit scheme based
benefits contributions  payments 2007 2006
Fees e Bonus RIREF AR 13 Total Total
we HtEd Teh FEMER TexE  MefE Mes®m
2007 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
—ETLE AL AL FTAEL FTAL FTAEL THER TAEL
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok FRB L E - 2,020 240 12 399 2,671 2,142
Mr. Hui Sum Ping FREEE - 2,020 240 12 540 2,812 2,156
Mr. Hui Sum Tai TRREE - 1,776 240 12 1,044 3,072 1,907
Mr. Wong Wing Por FRREE - 1,854 240 12 429 2,535 2,006
Ms. Hui Yuen Li HFEF L = 550 105 12 310 977 714
Mr. Liu Kwok Fai, Alvan BB #8 5% 4 98 - - - 34 132 98
Mr. Chee Man Sang, R4 %4+
Eric 98 - - - 34 132 98
Mr. Wong Chu Leung  EFHR = L4 98 - - - 34 132 86
Total for 2007 —EELEE
B4 1as8 294 8,220 1,065 60 2,824 12,463
Total for 2006 ZETREE
4 @58 282 6,804 1,705 60 356 9,207

Bonuses to directors are determined as a percentage
of the profit before taxation of the Group for the two

years ended 31st December, 2007.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to these directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office and no director had waived any emoluments.

MEBEDL -

REA
FEEFRBEEANMASERSMAR
SEzEBeARBHE
MEEFMME

EE2REAN2EBRE_ZT
TZA=+t—BLEMFEREEHA

+ F

CASEHSE N TOME T
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

2. EEMEREEFM (&)

(Continued)
Employees ES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEBRM &= HFHALTHOM AR
in the Group, four (2006: four) were directors of the NEEE(ZEERF M) BEZ
Company whose emoluments are set out above. FMERLEXHI -2 T~ (ZFF
The emoluments of the remaining one (2006: one) NE:—U)ATZBEemT
individual were as follows:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FATT
Salaries and other benefits e R HMEF 825 807
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAEF B 3R 12 12
Share-based payments AR X 5 2 2 i 307 =
1,144 819
13. DIVIDENDS 13. K&
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THT
Final dividend paid in respect of 2006 of 4.64 HK BIER-ZZTZ /\iﬂiﬁﬁﬂx g
cents (2005: 4.17 HK cents) per share BiR464B M (ZZEERF
FRAATHEN) 19,669 15,857
Interim dividend paid in respect of 2007 of 168 BIk_-ZZ+FhHKE
HK cents (2006: 1.58 HK cents) per share FR168BM (ZTTRF
%1587 1l) 8,107 6,060
27,776 21,917
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13. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

The final dividend in respect of 2007 of 4.32 HK
cents (2006: 4.64 HK cents) per share amounting
to HK$20,862,000 (2006: HK$19,669,000) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the following data:

13. BRE (&)

%%%m/ﬁﬁ_? TrHERBEREE

HX4 32/%1”—] (— /\ﬁE 464/%1”—])

A # #920,862, ooo,% T(ZEZTXNF:
19669000%%) A Hxﬁﬁéﬁgi@
BHRBEFRSEEFEEFE -

14. BRRER

ARrREBREERAAREERE
AEEERNTIRATBURFE

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAT
Earnings &7
Earnings for the purposes of basic and STEERERK
diluted earnings per share D el | odc |
— Profit for the year — FEFHE 111,744 68,298
2007 2006
Number of shares v g

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in

respect of share options e

AEBRERAMNZ
AN 15 B A A 2K

BhEEmERE
EBRBRNZEE

449,620,515 382,774,110

5,264,325 9,161,166

Weighted average number of ordinary shares =t & 5 B% 58 & 1| 2
INAE 19 3 B AR AR 2K

for the purpose of diluted earnings per
share

454,884,840 391,935,276
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BEZZZELFTA=ZTHLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥ -BERRK

%

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Plant,
Factory land and Leasehold and office  machinery and
Construction premises in buildings improvements equipment equipment Motor
in progress thePRC &L HE HBH-EE HE HBER  vehicles Total
EEIR HEEE REF NEEE RBLERE B RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTET FTAET FTET AT AT FAET FTAET TET
COST !ﬁ 7N
At 1st January, 2006 T 5-A—R 64,820 41,401 1,888 24,610 7,442 233,913 7,859 381,933
Additions R 25,742 33,761 2,403 3,255 842 19,939 3,520 89,462
Disposals HE = = = = ) (629) (2,437) (3,079)
Transfer B (64,820) 64,820 - - - - - -
At 31st December, 2006 ~ —ZERE
+-A=1+—8 25,742 139,982 4,291 27,865 8,277 253,223 8,942 468,322
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - 83 7 1 - - 91
Additions R 371,573 = = 1,409 1,359 106,154 624 481,119
Disposals HE = = = = (45) (641) @7) (713)
Transfer B (2,100) - - 689 - 1,411 - -
At 31st December, 2007  —ZT+ £
+=ZA=+—-H 395,215 139,982 4,374 29,970 9,692 360,147 9539 948,819
DEPRECIATION AND e R#EH
AMORTISATION
At 1st January, 2006 2 5-A—-8 = 12,186 197 7,583 2,209 64,428 4,405 91,008
Provided for the year EERE - 4,770 115 5,084 768 19,216 1,145 31,008
Eliminated on disposals HERTH = = = - (1) (90) (2,289) (2,380)
At 31st December, 2006 ~ —ZENE
+=ZA=+—-H = 16,956 312 12,667 2,976 83,554 3,261 119,726
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - 4 8 1 - - 8
Provided for the year FERE = 5,624 173 5,517 889 20,900 1,549 34,652
Eliminated on disposals i By o 8 = = = = (1) (179 @2 212
At 31st December, 2007 —ETLE
+-A=1+—8 = 22,580 489 18,187 3,855 104,275 4,788 154,174
CARRYING VALUE ENED
At 31st December, 2007 ~ —BELF
+-A=+—H 395,215 117,402 3,885 11,783 5,787 255,872 4751 794,645
At 31st December, 2006 ~ —ZTERE
+-A=+-—8 25,742 123,026 3,979 15,198 5,301 169,669 5,681 348,596
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Factory premises in the PRC
Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong
Kong and Macau and are held under medium term

leases.

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON

LAND USE RIGHTS

3"/3%-33"/3%

FRIPTE

4% FEEE

4% MELHEEF

20% FREmELRE

10% B RERBRAZRME
WE e RBE

20% a8

R HENEE -

=

ELEFER

15. ¥ -BERR®E (&)

LM E BB RBREABGERAT

4%
4%
20%
10%

3"/3%-33"/3%

20%

HE T REFUREERRFMTIZ

16. T AEESHERE

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments N & E 4 b {E A
on land use rights comprise: FENHEERIEBIE
Land use rights in the PRC 7 7R B 2 A Hb {5 R 4
Medium-term lease FRERAR 49 36,156 23,155
Analysed for reporting purpose as: FLERMIED T :
Non-current asset ERBEE 35,347 22,655
Current asset BN E 809 500
36,156 23,155

Included in the Group’s prepaid lease payments on
land use rights is HK$2,117,000 (2006: HK$2,179,000)
prepayments under processing arrangement which
represent the prepaid amount under an operating

lease for land use rights.

AEBz I MFRAERSEERE
B 152,117,000 T (Z T ZT N F
2,179,000/ ) 2 N T L BEFEF 5K+ Tb
i ARCEHET ZEANESE -
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17. INVENTORIES 17. B8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET F& T
Raw materials B # 176,255 71,919
Work in progress EE G 740 497
Finished goods AL o 15,003 7,034
191,998 79,450
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ES R HMEWNKIE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFERT T& T
Trade receivables B 5 EW A 128,477 124,454
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B R AR (3,713) (6,577)
124,764 118,877
Other receivables H b pE Uk Fh 18 6,661 158
Total trade and other receivables B REMEWRIEEEE 131,425 119,035
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ RHEMEWNKIE (&)
(Continued)
The Group allows a credit period of 5-150 days AEERTEFPSE150REEE - A
which may be extended to selected trade customers UREREEFPEAEBEZEZER
depending on their trade volume and history of NMREEmERZEEH - T7 7%
settlement with the Group. The following is an aged HEHMBRERERCE S E R
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance of ZERE AT

doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:

2007 2006
HK$000  HK$'000
TERr TAET

Current B HA 102,275 100,683
Overdue 1 to 30 days B Hi1Z230H 22,489 18,194

124,764 118,877

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses RENIRNFEZE N ~ANEB € E
an external litigation search to assess the potential B MFNE R FEEETL Y2
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on B EYAEREMA T =EREE-
a customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring MFEETRBERIME T A K —
attributed to customers are reviewed monthly. Trade W MESHAINERBE S S EKR S
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired g BT BB NSRS TR -

relate to customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance AEBESEWZEE ST BEE
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of T 1B 42 %8 522,489,000 7T 2 JE Uk 20
HK$22,489,000 (2006: HK$18,194,000) which are B (=T T X F 18,194,000 7T )
past due at the balance sheet date for which the ZESFENEE DR mAE
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The WERBREEEETRE A=W
Group does not hold any collateral over these R ST T AR R %
balances. The average age of these receivables is 48 : EWRBEREEEQHETN EHE
days based on invoice dates (2006: 50 days). #WAIsH (ZET N4 508 ) o
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. ESRHMEWNKE (&)
(Continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past E 8 B 16 K 5 18 .2 JE W 5% 2
due but not impaired -3
2007 2006

HK$'000  HK$'000
TER THET

Overdue 1 to 30 days B HI1 =304 22,489 18,194
Receivables that were past due but not impaired EEBERBRECERIENIEBAS
relate to a number of independent customers that HHEAEBRRGERITE S RN KL E
have good trade and payment records with the ZEBURP FEZEEERUEEAX
Group. There has not been a significant change in R WA Y A R4

credit quality and the balance are still recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful RIRBEZEE
debts

2007 2006
HK$000  HK$'000
TER THET

Balance at beginning of the year F ) 45 8 5,577 5,620

Impairment losses recognised on receivables & & 57 & W X 1B 2 8 (B & 18 2,056 =

Amounts written off as uncollectible Wig 2 N E S 58 (3,920) (43)

Amounts recovered during the year F R YO58 — =

Balance at end of the year F R4 3,713 5,577
Impairment losses were recognised based on the BEBEDREASEHEE 2 AR
Group’s historical experience, ageing analysis and £ EE e 7 i K Uk Bl % = B R EB R
internal assessment of the recoverability of the debt. &R
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19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. THGBRES
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RUTEH LB SBEALEERFEE 2R
Group and bank balances at prevailing market rates S RIBATMEFNEN F03%ZE1.0%Y
from 0.3% to 1.0% and short-term bank deposits of RIT6E - AR T HFIR 52.0% 2 52 5
fixed interest rates at 2.0% with an original maturity of WIHFEF . ERAEEH A=A
three months or less. T
Included in the carrying amount of the Group’s bank AREBENUARE  ZxREITHIEZ R
balances are HK$55,485,000 (2006: HK$71,888,000), 1TH % 2 BRE B £55,485,000/8 7T (= Z
HK$12,853,000 (2006: HK$37,664,000) and = X F 1 71,888,000 JT) ~ 12,853,000
HK$1,901,000 (2006: nil) denominated in Renminbi, BT (Z B E SN F 37,664,000 7T ) K&
US dollars and EUR dollars respectively. 1,901,000 T (ZEZNF : F) o
20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 20. TESRTIT A
INSTRUMENTS
2007 2006
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE aE BE aE

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT TERT THAR TET

Forward foreign exchange & HiSINE & 49

contracts 2,141 (969) 9 (4,590)
Interest rate swaps | 2 42 15 = (249) = (50)
2,141 (1,218) 9 (4,640)
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are

as follows:

(i) Forward foreign exchange contracts

20.

Statements

TTEETMIA

/,

T

K
330

MTAZEE

&)

fERsRan T

() EHIEEH

Maturity*
(from balance
sheet date) Contracted

Notional amount A exchange rates

ERSH (B#ER®) AWES

6 contracts to purchase US$200,000 or 6IE % BHAHK Within 1 year HK$7.6805/US$1
US$400,000 1% E200,000% L& —FR 7.6805% 7L/13% T
per contract (note) 400,000% 7T

GED)

15 contracts to purchase US$300,000 or 15[ &4 BH A4 Within 1 to 2 years HK$7.748/US$1
US$600,000 f% B300,000% T 3 —EMER 7748BTTAETT
per contract (note) 600,000% 7T

(B 3E)

62 contracts to purchase US$500,000 or
US$1,000,000 per contract (note)

27 contracts to purchase US$1,000,000 or
US$2,000,000 per contract (note)

1 contract to sell HK$3,000,000

6 contracts to sell HK$4,000,000 per
contract

5 contracts to purchase HK$4,000,000 per
contract

620 A4 B A K

B B500,000% T
1,000,0003 7T (M 5E)

AR H BHAH

i 1,000,000 7T 5,
2,000,000% 7T
(H3E)

et hE

3,000,000/ 7T

6iAaH BHAEK

i £4,000,0007% 7T

5 R4 BAHK
B

f& E4,000,0007% 7T

Within 1 to 2 years
—EMER

Within 1 to 2 years
—EMER

Within 1 year
—F R

Within 1 year
—F R

Within 1 year
—£R/

HK$7.699/US$1 to
HK$7.738/US$1
7.6998 TAETLE
7.7387% TLAETT

HK$7.735/US$1 to
HK$7.739/US$1
77358 TLNETLE
77397 JLAETT

HK$1/RMBO0.9568
18T/
AR #0.95687C

HK$1/RMB0.9380 to
HK$1/RMBO0.9708

175 7T/ AN R #0.93807L &
178 7T/ A R #0.97087T

HK$1/RMB0.9414 to
HK$1/RMB0.9590

1B T/ AREE0.9414TE
17 7t/ A R #0.95907T

*

The contracts will be settled on the maturity

date or settled monthly during the contract

period.
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PTESBMIA (&)
(Continued)
() Forward foreign exchange contracts () EBEIESH (FF)
(Continued)
Note: The amount of United States dollars to be Wi AEBEFRBEZETSEER
purchased by the Group wil be determined FEINHEAMIGEXRES LE
based on the market exchange rate at each X7 EEHEME -

maturity date as compared with the contracted
exchange rates.

(i) Interest rate swaps contracts (i) FIEEREH
Notional amount Maturity date Swaps
AETH 2HA B
HK$50,000,000 17.5.2010 From HIBOR floating rate to HIBOR floating rate with
50,000,0007% 7T maximum interest rate of 4.2%

HEARITAZKREZEEZEFERITAERE
&= M & R4.2%
HK$50,000,000 25.5.2010 From HIBOR floating rate to HIBOR floating rate with
50,000,000/ JT. maximum interest rate of 4.3%
EEE BRITAEFEBZEEZFARTAEFEZZE
= F & 54.3%

The above derivatives are measured at fair ot m HETERZEERIRAT
values at each balance sheet date. Assumptions EBE - REMRBEILAZEME
are made based on market rates adjusted for ERE 2 TGRRMIELRE -

specific features of the instruments.

113



Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B SRR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
BE_ZZ+FT-A=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESRHMENRKIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at T AEEB2E S ENRIBEREK D
the balance sheet date: T
2007 2006

HK$'000  HK$'000
TER THET

Current Bl 2B 43,137 46,369
Overdue 1 to 30 days 7 Hi1 =30H 10,285 6,251
Overdue 31 to 60 days 61 Bi31 260H 6,231 107
Overdue for more than 60 days %1 HI60H KA £ 476 244
60,129 52,971
Other payables and accrued charges HihERM RIE R ET Y H 54,516 31,853
114,645 84,824
The average credit period on purchases of goods is BEEY 2 FHEER A29H - KEF
29 days. The Group has financial risk management SEVERBERERE  UERAE
policies in place to ensure that all payables are within TRIBH A BE = EHR -

the credit timeframe.
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S
22.

BB HmRN T

—EE+F+ - A=Z+—HIEFE
BANK BORROWINGS 22. RITIEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unsecured bank borrowings comprise: EIRFRITEERE
Trust receipt loans ErERIEE R 132,165 11,695
Bank loans RITE 335,597 187,443
467,762 199,138
Carrying amount repayable: fEE
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FA&T
On demand or within one year mENRY—FNR 236,848 65,611
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRRERTNRN
two years 91,754 49,435
More than two years, but not exceeding MEBRBRFA
five years 139,160 84,092
467,762 199,138
Less: Amount due within one year shown BWOREBAET
under current liabilities —F AN L8 (236,848) (65,611)
Amounts due after one year —F &S E 230,914 133,527
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22. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 22. RITEE (&)
Bank loans and trust receipt loans comprise the WOTERMETREERBFEIUATE
following borrowings: g
Effective 2007 2006

interest rate HK$°000 HK$’000
BEBRFI= TERT FET

Bank loans at Hong REBRITEER 4.655%-5.674% 335,597 185,595
Kong Interbank Offer B ([BFERTH (2006: 4.914%-6.184%)
rate (‘HIBOR”) + 0.7% %378 |) 2 #R1T
to HIBOR + 1.25% ERM0.7EE
1.25[E
Other bank loans at REBEEMNEZH (2006: 6.723%~7.139%) - 1,848
Prime rate — 1% to 3R 17 B RO
Prime rate — 1.25% B £=1.25[F
Trust receipt loans ERKRIEER 3.5620%-6.050% 132,165 11,695

(2006: 4.800%—6.370%)

467,762 199,138

All the bank loans are arranged at floating rates, thus FrAIRITER ‘”Ebﬂfzﬂﬁ [EINES
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. EEEREIR S F ERR
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23. STRUCTURED BORROWING 23. HBEBE
The Group entered into a contract of structured AEBEFRIFTIZI-EHRFHRZ
borrowing with a bank in last year for a period of five EEEBEAD - ZAENDHEIETETAUA
years. The entire contract was designated as financial FEFABER2HBAG-

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

2007 2006
HK$000  HK$'000
TERT THET

Structured borrowing, classified as: EEEE DEA:
Current (note) BI AR (B 5% ) 7,800 7,765
Non-current JE BN ER 26,069 43,426
33,869 51,191
The structured borrowing contains embedded EBEES Aﬁﬁ ANESTAETAR > mp
derivatives, and the entire combined contract was g REDREZAEHEN2ETET A
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon NE(E Jr)ua $3& o
initial recognition.
Note: The current portion represents the minimum amount Mz : ENHAZSMEN AR —FERMBETESE
repayable to the bank within one year. CERIEKESEE -
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23. STRUCTURED BORROWING
(Continued)

Major terms of the structured borrowing at 31st

December, 2007 and 2006 are set out below:

23- ml:l %{ﬂﬁ (//\ )
%:%%ti&:%;ﬁ¢+:ﬂ
=t B EEEEZEZETNOT

118

Borrowing Maturity date Repayment amount
BE 3B HESHE
US$5,000,000 25.9.2011 First half year : 2% per annum on notional amount
5,000,000 7T BEXF BFABRELEI2%
Remaining 4 and half years:
8% minus (6% x N/M) per annum on
notional amount
ER T EOF
BEABELEI8%
A (6% x N/M)
Where: H

N = number of business days in the period for which
Spread Rate > -0.05%

M = actual number of business days in the period

Notional amount = US$50,000,000

“Spread Rate” means 10-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate
minus 2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate

“10-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate” means the rate for a
reset date will be the rate for U.S. Dollar swaps with
a maturity of the designated maturity of 10 years,
expressed as a percentage which appears on the
Reuters Screen ISDAFIX1 Page as of 11:00 a.m. New
York time on each business day.

“2-year US$-ISDA-Swap Rate” means the rate for
a reset date will be the rate for U.S. Dollar swaps
with a maturity of the designated maturity of 2 years,
expressed as a percentage which appears on the
Reuters Screen ISDAFIX1 Page as of 11:00 a.m. New
York time on each business day.

N=EBZ>-005%HHz&F¥HBAH

M=HIfIZEREEAHH
% % € % = 50,000,000 £ 7T

[ B % |#510%F 3£ JT-ISDA- 1= B | & 2
F K TT-ISDA-1= B i &

[10F £ JT-ISDA-18 B | & | 5 E 7] Al &
BHzAEXBEREERBAEE TF
BBz ETEEANE - LA SEERT
PREEEERD EFEBE (BORBRE)
FEE B+ B B ISDAFIX1 B B R ©

[26F 55 JT-ISDA-#2 B3 FI & |38 & 5T Al &
BHzAMEBEREERBAEEMF
BBz ETEEANE - LA SR
W BEEEAR ETEIE (AORE)
FE & B+ R B ISDAFIX1 B B R »
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23. STRUCTURED BORROWING 23.

(Continued)

The entire combined contract is measured at fair
value that are estimated using a discounted cash
flow analysis based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and market rates adjusted for specific
features of this instrument. Decrease in its fair value of
the structured borrowing for the year of HK$9,762,000
has been credited to the consolidated income
statement. Fair value change of HK$12,366,000 has
been charged to the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31st December, 2006.

The structured borrowing is denominated in United
States dollars that is the currency other than the
functional currencies of the respective group entities.

EBREER (E)

ZEHEHNEEELATETE M
Qifﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁiﬁi/\mé?ﬁﬁ *ﬁ *E
BEBENEREECBREEEHLTA
CHEMERR MBS M EMMGE - F
W& 15 QT ER 29,762,000 T
E‘f)\? HQ”‘%W @Z;ﬁ:_qg/\
F+-_A=+—"BLEFE QAFEE
#)12,366,000/8 ;L B R ér & Wam & A
|17/]§o

HEEEBUXRTHE METAZTEE
EERNEEEUINZEE -

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, R
Number of shares Share capital
BHE B & A<
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 & B & {H0.10/5 7T
each 2 E RS
Authorised: ETE R
At the beginning and REN R FK
the end of the year 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issue and fully paid: BT R R
At the beginning of REA
the year 423,898,000 367,926,000 42,390 36,792
Exercise of share options 17 {f & ik #%
(Note 26) (Bt 5E26) 16,626,000 15,972,000 1,662 1,598
Placing of new shares i & %1k 42,400,000 40,000,000 4,240 4,000
At the end of the year GRS 482,924,000 423,898,000 48,292 42,390
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24.
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SETLFT A=t -RILEE
SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 19th July, 2007, arrangements were made for
a private placement to independent investors of
42,400,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
held by Hop Fung Industries Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, at a price of HK$3.55
per share representing a discount of approximately
7.31% to the closing market price of the Company’s
shares on 19th July, 2007.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same
date, Hop Fung Industries Limited subscribed for
42,400,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a price of HK$3.55 per share. The
proceeds were used to finance the construction
of a new manufacturing factory and acquisition of
production equipment. These new shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the directors at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on
28th May, 2007 and rank pari passu with other shares
in issue in all respects.

On 14th November, 2006, arrangements were made
for a private placement to independent investors of
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
held by Hop Fung Industries Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, at a price of HK$2 per
share, representing a discount of approximately 7.41%
to the closing market price of the Company’s shares
on 14th November, 2006.

Pursuant to a subscription agreement of the same
date, Hop Fung Industries Limited subscribed for
40,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a price of HK2 per share. The proceeds
were used to finance the construction of a new
factory and to provide additional working capital for
the Company. These new shares were issued under
the general mandate granted to the directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th
May, 2006 and rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.

24,

B (47)

RZEZELFLA+NA XRFE
f% A% B Hop Fung Industries Limited{E i}
L EEGR355B T 2 BE M BILIE
EEMAREEREZARRERE
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KRERARGDRHR_ZEZEELF LA
TABZBHEFEL7.31% °

BB R B 2 R 8 % & Hop Fung
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REAQFEFREEA0E T2 FA D
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MERKEEESHREES ZEM
BOTREARAGR-_ZEZLFHA
TN NHET L BRRBFRAESRES
Bz —MEEMET WHEEAD
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. IEIER 18
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised UWTAAEBRERZELEREABER
by the Group and movements thereon during the RAFERBRATREHAB 2 EF) -
current and prior reporting period:
Accelerated tax depreciation
INRFLIBITE
HK$’'000
FAT
At 1st January, 2006 R-ZEEF—HA—H 666
Credit to consolidated income EARFEZEAEWEFZRTA
statement for the year =
At 31st December, 2006 R-_TBEEFE+_-_HA=+—H 666
Charge to consolidated income EARFELZE KK
statement for the year 3,164
At 31st December, 2007 R-_ZEE+LF+_HA=+—H 3,830

At 31st December, 2007, the Group had unused
tax losses of HK$1,272,000 (2006: HK$1,272,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At 31st December, 2007, the Group also has other
deductible temporary differences of HK$1,266,000
(2006: HK$1,482,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

R-_EZ+F+-_A=+—8 A&H
T%Mﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬂZ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
& 18 /1,272,000 5L (Z T T X F -
1,272,000/ 7T ) ° M R &L FEF R 2R A
BRR MW ERZEREEBERER
ERIBEE - [SIEA] BRI

MRZBEA+F+_A=+—0 x&£H
TN H b AT F0 8 RS = 581,266,00078

T (ZEZ /N4 11,482,000/ 71 ) - AR
AR S BRERRAMBAANKEZE

T?D%R%’?H«;§%E B 4 5% 55 A AR
ENEZHERIAELEHBAEE -
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—ETLEFTZA=T—RIEFE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4th
September, 2003 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group. The Scheme will expire on
3rd September, 2013.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including executive or non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), of the Company,
its subsidiaries, or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time,
grant share options to any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, any customer of the Group or any Invested
Entity, and any consultants, advisers, managers,
officers or entities that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity.

26. U2

KREXNXGHERETE

RER-_ZFT=ZFNLAMNABB IR
#E - ARAEERAEREE (T4
) IZEMNAAEELERERTE
Pt NSRBI RREREHANEE L
ZER - ZAEBR —_F—=FNA=
SPEy K

RBEZTE  ARREFTEAMAR
A EMBARSAEETMAKE AT
R AT 2 A EE (TR E %
BODZEERREER (BRATESHF
MITEERBUFRTER)REBKR
B URBEARARBE - B NATF]
EREIARRIEBERETENRASE
ZRERBRITAMEERBRHIHE
MR 2 E M ER - NEE I
P EME s EIMER ARAAEE
KEMARERBRENE  FAEXHE
R ERE 2 EMFEAA - BA-
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—EELET A=+ —RILEE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 36,000,000
shares, being 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date on which the shares of
the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange,
which can be refreshed according to the Scheme.
The number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised at any time under the Scheme shall
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders in
accordance with the Scheme. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective
associates would result in the shares in the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue and with a value
(based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the offer date of each offer) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, such grant of options must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders
in accordance with the Scheme.

26. RO 2XH (&)

BREZNXZHBKESE (E)

BEZTERH 2 BRERE 2 H7T
FRATFETZROAS TEEBA
36,000,0000% % 17 BN AS X &) & 1 7 Bt
R ETEBEZEITRMDZ10% @ it
RENRIEZTEEH - NEREERE
BERTEREZAEREMATHEZ
TEREREMm A TEHTRMND ZEE
TERBARANTTEH D BITRAY
30% -

KRN F R EAREZAT S B L
MAERBEARKZEBRETES R Z
BHEE  RERNTZM@AHB BT
BHRAARNRTMNEHEEETERS
Z1% o WA — B EBRRE - B IEH
NTEERTAREZ2AABEALR
HEMERE 2EREARTZALZ
FTEEREETEMRBEZREEAR
F+-—EAHM BEERETFHITZA
AR, ARMEARBEETRMDEB
B0.1%  BEE (REARARORNE
RELERESBH KM ENE) LA
5,000,000/ 7T + RIFZIAR B R EAES
EBEIARR B REAREZAT S -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme

(Continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during
the period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to the grantee and in the absence of such
determination, from the date of acceptance of an offer
of the grant of such option to the earlier of the date
on which such option lapses and ten years from the
date of offer of that option. A consideration of HK$1
is payable upon acceptance of the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher
of the nominal value of the share; the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer;
the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer.

and

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by directors and other employees
and movements in such holdings during the year:

26.

UM Z N2 (&)
RESHXZERETE ()

BREAIREFTEELAEEARALZ
HIM AR 1T M RBEE  BdhE
MELBERERRESZBRERE
ZETEIRMz B RN %BRER

BT FZRE BB - RN AERER
ANIETRE-

TEEDNHARAFESET  ETFE
RBMHEE  ARFARMNRELEHZ
Wi EREMDEZERE LB AR E
BERAZTFHRTEZERE -

TERBREREZLHEMBEERAZA
’ATE%HxTELA&EZ—rﬁ%HﬂéﬁAimz

2007 ZEBELF
Outstanding
Qutstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled at 31.12.2007
at1.1.2007 during during during RZTZTtHF
Exercisable ~ R-ZT+F 2007 2007 2007 +ZH
Option type Date of grant price —A—-8 —TTtFE -—TTLE —TTLE ==
BERERER KRS  IFE R ITHE M AT At i EARTTHE
HK$
BT
B 29.7.2004 1.330 7,626,000 - (7,626,000 - -
C 4.11.2004 1.104 9,000,000 — (9,000,000 - -
D 29.5.2007 2.640 — 18,374,360 - - 18,374,360
16,626,000 18,374,360 (16.626.000) - 18,374,360
Exercisable at the end ~ MERA{TE
of the year -
Weighted average METFHTHEE
exercise price 1.208 2.640 1.208 - 2.640
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 26. UGBzl (E)
Equity-settled share option scheme BREZIXZHEKRETE (Z)
(Continued)

2006 —TERE
QOutstanding
Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Canoelled & 31122008
at 1.1.2006 during during during R=FFREF
Exercisable R=ZEARF 2006 2006 2006 +=-A
Option type Date of grant price —A—B ZZERE ZZZRF —TETRE =f+—H
[t e 3abil ] == 18 HAITE AR H AFix:d M mATTE
HKS
BT
A 3.11.2008 1130 12,658,000 —  (12,658,000) - -
B 29.7.2004 1.330 10,940,000 —  (3,314,000) = 7,626,000
C 4.11.2004 1.104 9,000,000 — — — 9,000,000
32,598,000 —  (15,972,000) — 16,626,000
Exercisable at the end WEEA TR
of the year 11,641,000
Weighted average MEFHITERE
exercise price 1.190 — 1171 — 1.208
Note: MfsE -
The vesting period, which is the period from the date of REBRE:GEHATERELDHEM
grant to the exercisable date, of the share options granted is HEENEABRLEERERET - BIEZT
determined by directors at each time when the options are EIRHZERESEGABRARATITEE
granted. Holders of share options granted under the Scheme FITE AR -
may only exercise their options during the exercisable
periods as follows:
Maximum % of share options
Option type A Option type B Option type C Option type D exercisable
AEBRE BB RE CEBRE DB R R ATEERESESES L
3.5.2004- 1.1.2005- 1.3.2005- 1.3.2008- up to 50%
3.11.2004 31.12.2005 28.2.2006 28.2.2009 &= A EE0%
4.11.2004— 1.1.2006- 1.8.2006- 1.3.2009- up to 75% (to the extent not already
3.11.2005 31.12.2006 28.2.2007 28.2.2010 exercised)
Bim Al E75% (LA RITEE RBR)
4.11.2005- 1.1.2007- 1.3.2007- 1.83.2010- up to 100% (to the extent not
3.11.2006 31.12.2007 29.2.2008 28.2.2011 already exercised)

&= A ZE100% A AR TTEE BR)
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SEFLF LA -RALERE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise was HK$3.108 (2006: HK$1.91). The options
outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3 years (2006: 1.1
years).

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, options
were granted on 29th May, 2007. The estimated fair
values of the options granted on those dates are
HK$10,211,000.

These fair values were calculated using The Binomial

26.

UM Z N2 (&)
RESHXZERETE ()

MFRTEZEREMNS  E176FH
Z INHEF G IAE A3.1088 T (Z 2T X
FA9B L) RERERITEZE
REHE 2 Nt 1 R sr A 48 A3F (=
TERF 115

Rz +F+=-_A=+—H1t
FE R-ZTLFRA-t+NLHEEH
BRE RNZSESERLZBREZG
A F (& A10,211,000/% 7T °

FEBEA_CERIERET

S Paras
ZER

model. The inputs into the model were as follows: BRXFESENT
2007
Share price on the date of grant HEBHZEE HK$2.64 2.647% T
Exercise price TEE HK$2.64 2.64% T
Expected volatility T8 B R 1@ 33.18% 33.18%
Expected life B HA4E HR 2.26 to 3.26 years 2.26E3.26%F
Risk-free rate £ [ B M) 4.210 to 4.244% 4.21024.244%

Expected dividend TaHI AR B
Closing share price immediately
before date of grant

]

ERFLBHARNZ

Interm: HK$0.0168

R HA : 0.01685% T
AH : 0.046478 T
2,535 7T

Final: HK$0.0464
HK$2.53

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s 400-day share
prices before the date of grant. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

TEHR K 1R Jo{F A % B HBAT4008 AN A
RIREZBAERBETE - ZEXAEH
WBHEFHEREEERE 2 & EMaT
RAAEZE  TERIERTAZEERE
ZHEELAE-
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SEFLFTAS T -RALERE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme
(Continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of
HK$5,206,000 for the year ended 31st December,
2007 (2006: HK$411,000) in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease which fall due
as follows:

26.

27.

RMZ N zXH (&)
RESHXGERETE ()

AEEBBRABEEZE-_ZEZTLF+=A
S+—HLEFERARBDMBHZE
i A B8 2 4 i A5,206,000% 7T (=
T TN 411,000 7T ) ©

REBERE
REHE  AEBRETITIEEER

EMBRRSERENFAE  BRT
51) 57 ) 5 89 -

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Within one year —FR 84 26
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FEENF (BEEEME) 58 =
142 26

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its warehouse, ancillary
office properties and car parks. Lease is negotiated
for an average term of one year (2006: one year) with
fixed monthly rentals over the term of the lease.

REMENREAEERERE &Y
momERFEL 2 ENES -HE
ZERTFH—FH(ZFTTRF: —F
H) R EOBENERAME -
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—EELET-ASt+-BLHE
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BEARERE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisiton 2 E] 418 KRR & B & &
of plant and equipment contracted for but not RE 2R N R e &
provided in the consolidated financial statements N 151,898 232,340
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 09. 3B KIS RISt &l
Hong Kong F-
The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund NEBLHEEBES ARG EATE
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its employees in e ([RBELtE)D - BFELHE

Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the scheme.

R IE 98 B 1 215 & 5T &R B 50 58 Bl 1
NEEFEEEREM - BRESFEZ
BEEASEEESR UYHBIX
AEZEFl 2 ESEE - RIEBESFER
A BERHEEESBARRAEED
bhxRmA@EerE SN HR - AEREY
FRBRESAE BT EMRE
TP BB R E R HFR -

RiFARERIIHZRE S BRI
B EHARAAEEZTERE <
‘_?*rmgéﬁ}{/ﬁﬁzf/\T))\o
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—EELFFT_A=+T—RHLLEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
(Continued)

PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute 10% of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to approximately HK$737,000
(2006: HK$508,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 9th December, 2004, a tax audit was commenced
by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD”) on certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely,
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited
(“*GMHF”), Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory
Limited and Hop Fung (Overseas) Trading Limited (the
“Subsidiaries”), in respect of the years of assessment
1998/1999 to 2003/2004. On 26th January, 2005, 5th
January, 2006 and 2nd June, 2006, whilst these cases
are still under investigation, the IRD issued protective
assessments for the years of assessment 1998/1999,
1999/2000 and 2000/2001 to 2003/2004 respectively
to the above-mentioned subsidiaries in order not to
jeopardise the assessment powers of the IRD which
will be time-barred after 6 years of assessment. In
addition, the IRD issued an additional assessment to
GMHF for the year of assessment 2004/2005 on 2nd
June, 2006. Objections have been filed against all
these assessments and, accordingly, no provision has
been made in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of any potential tax liabilities.

290.

30.

RANEREE (F)

& [

AEBZHBEMBRARERE RPERK
FEREzBRERRREBHNEIKE -
Mg R BIZAREFHF SR A10% R ENKE
T'JEJriUT/fE?K NBERM - AEEE R
RAE N T8l 2 — B E R IF L E #

=
NI

F - R RAE R 5T 84 54 A&737,000
BT (ZEZ R £ 508,0008 70 ) ©

FREE

R-ZEENF+_ANHE BBEHEER
((HBERDBEARAETHBRAAAR
HELYRMMBERAR ([RHEEE]) -
Blm A L2 4 % E A R 2 8 RHop Fung
(Overseas) Trading Limited ([ & 2 & 1)
R—hAANF/—AhANFEZZTE=
E/‘fiﬁmiﬂﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ°
EEZMEETHE RZETRF
—AZt+X"B - ZEZERF-—ARHK
—EERFANAZB BBEROAMLE
B ARz — jljw\i/ AANE -
—NMWNWNF/—ZETEFR T F/
—EEFEFTET=F/ZFTETMHF
IREFEEELREMTHE UegE
MBEBANRBBIHREERANF AT
F2ABEN N BBERR_EE

NERNAZBARRBEERTHELH -
EENE/—_ETREFIRFEZAN

B AKECHMAZSEIRELR
At YEREMEEREEER
REMBHRRELEE-
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

BHE

31.

130

Up to date, the taxes demanded under the protective
assessments amounted to HK$75,663,980 in
aggregate. Subsequent to the lodgement of objections

by the Subsidiaries, tax

reserve certificates of

HK$480,000 and HK$1,400,000 in respect of the
assessments for Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware
Factory Limited and Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper
Ware Factory Limited, pending the outcome of the tax
audits and the objections, were purchased in March
2005 and March 2006 respectively. Also, banker’s
undertakings of HK$13,197,475 were arranged by the
Group and had been accepted by the IRD as security
for payment of the mentioned tax. The remaining
amounts of tax of HK$60,586,505 demanded by the
IRD have been held over unconditionally.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
potential tax liabilities that may arise as a result of

the tax audits,

if any, would not have any significant

effects on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)

During the year, the Group engaged Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty Ltd as the Group’s purchase
agent in Australia at an annual fee of HK$1 for
the agency services rendered to the Group.
The total value of goods purchased under this
arrangement from the suppliers amounted to
HK$27,175,000 (2006: HK$22,473,000). Hop
Fung (Australia) Pty Ltd is a company in which
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, executive director of the
Company, has beneficial interest.

30. RERE (EF)

31.

BEEZAH EREMEFIHRER M
X 4E %8 /75,663,980 7T o AT B A 7
ERXREER DIR_ZTERF =
ARZZEERF=ZAFAHEAEEHR M
BMERABIREEGLEHERBERA
A 2 &F B B 2480,000/% 7T M.1,400,000
BILERSF  UWEREERRREERSE
RN AEEE THERITAEE
13,197, 4758 L fEA S Fili MR 2
EH MESREEXZER - RER
B & sk 2 E % 4 7860,586,505/%8 It & 1
EARGE

$’AET§$ R BB EZAEE

EEREAG HAEELEHBAE
1% A E B AEBGEMBIREBK
EREEN-Z -
BEALTRS
a F A X £ B ¥ FHHop Fung

(Australia) Pty Ltd /2 7k £= B 7 38 M
CIHREREBA THERAESR
REZAREBERBEINFEIET -
BEKBEZHEAREERECZE
5 48 (B B27,175,00008 7T (— & 2
7N £ 122,473,000 L) o A R

AT E 5 7 Fx B 5 A& M Hop Fung
(Australia) Pty LtdF B B =i o
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—ETEFTZA=T—RIEFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEATRE (&)
(Continued)

b)  The remuneration of directors, who are key b) BAAEEBETEEBAEZES

management of the Group, during the year
are disclosed in note 12. The remuneration
of executive directors, who are also the key
executives of the Group, is determined by the

remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

SUMMARISED BALANCE SHEET OF

THE COMPANY

BAE-

RERZ SR E128E - #
TESTERAKEETESRIT
BEZHMERFHE R
ERFEARBELTEBLEE -

2. ARFEEEBERBE

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE&ET F& T

Investment in subsidiary REBRARIZ®E 113,455 113,455
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE O] 837,092 464,783
Deposits and prepayments ®Re MBI 729 285
Bank balances and cash RITEBRAIRE 3,440 62,132
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B A Rl k1B (455,841) (282,991)
Other payables and accrued charges HihEARIERES T E (6,344) (5,761)
Taxation 18 (309) (853)
492,222 351,050

Share capital R% 7 48,292 42,390
Share premium and reserves A% 17 B M {5 443,930 308,660
492,222 351,050
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. TEMBELAREHR
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries, all of which are wholly- E/\—ggti tT-A=+—-BE_-%
owned by the Company, as at 31st December, 2007 ERE+ZA=+—H ARAETZ
and 31st December, 2006 are as follows: BHEEZMBARFBLOT !

Name of subsidiary

Place of incorporation or
registration / operation

Issued and fully paid share capital/
contributed capital

Principal activities

WEARER HMAL/EEhY BRARMERA/BHERE TEEH
Chun Yik (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macau Ordinary shares MOP100,000 Trading of paper ware products
#m (RNEFEERE)BRARA 1! £ iBR100,0008 M % BmES
Fung Kong Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 Provision of management service
HESHmBERAR B LRERI00%E T RUERRE

Non-voting deferred shares HK$3,000,000 (Note)

ERZEEITR3,000000% 7T (H3E)
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Investment holding
EEAgEnBERAR B LERET REBR
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Ware Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 Provision of management service
AR EUmEARRR B LRERI00%E T RUERRE

Non-voting deferred shares HK$3,000,000 (Note)

ERZEEITR3,000000% 7T (H3E)
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited * PRC Contriouted capital HK$554,094,899 Manufacturing and trading of paper
RE(BN)BEBRAR i (2006: HK$276,094,899) BRIHERES

E 88 £554,004,8097 1T

(ZEZ 5 1 276,004,899 L)

Hop Fung Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Provision of management service
REERARAA 3 LEMRoA T REERRY
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BE_ZT+FT-A=+—HILEFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33. FEMBLATER (&)

Place of incorporation or  Issued and fully paid share capital /

Name of subsidiary

registration / operation

contributed capital

Principal activities

WEARAR B/ EEHY BRORMERE/BARE TEEHB
Hop Fung Group Company Limited British Virgin Islands / Ordinary shares US$600 Investment holding
Hong Kong EERE00ET REER
EBRABES/TR
Hop Fung International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 Provision of accounting service
AUEENEERAT B EARET RUEEHRE
Man Shung (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macau Ordinary shares MOP100,000 Manufacturing and trading of paper
EIR (2PEFEERE) AR AR 9 £ER100,0002 9% ware products
HESRRERE D
Top Develop Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares US$1 Investment holding and trading
BEERAF HBEAEE LEmET of paper
REZRRAFE S
REERERARAA" PRC Contributed capital HK$20,000,000 Manufacturing and sales of
# £ % R 720,000,000% 7T paper ware products

RERHERM
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2007
—EELET A=+ —RILEE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BHE

34.

134

Note: The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by
the Group, practically carry no right to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any annual
general meeting of the companies. On winding up,
the holders of the deferred shares are entitled to the
distribution after the distribution of HK$100,000,000
million to holders of ordinary shares, as specified in

the articles of association.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31st December, 2007 or at any time

during the year.

* Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited and
Rc#ERMAMARAR are wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures for the year ended
31st December, 2006 have been reclassified in order
to have a consistent presentation of the current year

consolidated

income statement.
in fair value of derivative financial

Realised changes
instruments  of

HK$827,000 that was included in other income has
been reclassified to realised and unrealized changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments. Moreover,

turnover for the year ended 31st December,

2006

of HK$20,127,000 has been adjusted with the
corresponding entry recognised in cost of sales.

33.

34.

TENBRrAER (B)

Mt B EREERYIERAEEEFE
E;@tﬁﬁ%%%%m&%%zHMH
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)*&ECQL&KZ%%U BB R
BEAREHEEREERTE  ELE
BOEBEARBEBEFAEADIR
100,000,000,000,0007% Jt # 7] £ £ 5
K e

FxHop Fung Group Company Limited%} -
EMmEWNBARYBAARRABMER
5o

R-TFEFFT_A=1T—HHEEFER
TER SMBRRYEEHES

* HRECGEH)MAEBRAARRZES
MRmARRAZENELE -

g F

HE_ZTZEF+-A=+—8BIL*F
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Financial Summary
YAZ AT oH
E?f 75 TE?[L =
Year ended 31st December,
HEt+t-_A=+—HItEE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THEHxT TFTAT THERT TAT FHET
(Restated)
(x&E75)
RESULTS B
Turnover = 0] 592,554 760,981 788,555 799,936 925,533
Cost of sales $H & A (467,243) (610,163) (634,422) (617,735) (713,899)
Gross profit E 125,311 150,818 154,133 182,201 211,634
Other income NN 10,113 11,554 15,728 17,742 18,526
Selling and distribution costs 4 & K 5§ Ak 74x (29,849) (38,069) (37,277) (39,946)  (45,355)
Administrative expenses TE R (30,343) (35,200) (37,724) (42,614)  (58,491)
Other expenses H b (9,609) (12,582) (18,601) (22,081)  (24,686)
Finance costs B 75 BR 7R 4173  (1,871)  (5,924)  (8,644) (6,837)
Change in fair value of HEEEEATEZ
structured borrowing bk = — —  (12,3606) 9,762
Realised and unrealised TESBMTAEATE
changes in fair value 2B EE N AKEIE
of derivative financial b=
instruments — — 474 (4,278) 10,561
Profit before taxation i A A1) E 61,450 74,650 70,809 70,014 115,114
Taxation I8 (5,763) (7,719  (1,096)  (1,716) (3,370)
Profit for the year £ 2 A 55,687 66,931 69,713 68,298 111,744
At 31st December,
R+—A=+—8H
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TEHExT TFAET FTHET TFAET FE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES X¥ERE®E
Total assets BEE 370,590 481,574 663,726 843,030 1,382,537
Total liabilities weE 145,642 195552 325,401 358,934 638,795
Equity % 7% 224,048 286,022 338,325 484,096 743,742
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28th March, 2003 and became the holding company of
the Group with effect from 25th August, 2003 upon the
completion of the Group Reorganisation as set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 15th September, 2003.

The results of the Group for the three years ended 31st
December, 2003, 31st December, 2004 and 31st December,
2005 and the balance sheets of the Group at 31st
December, 2003, 31st December, 2004 and 31st December,
2005 have been extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group as set out in the annual
reports for the years 2003, 2004 and 2005.

The results of the Group for the two years ended 31st
December, 2006 and 31st December, 2007 and the balance
sheets of the Group at 31st December, 2006 and 31st
December, 2007 have been extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on
pages 56 to 58 respectively.
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